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ROYAL DUTCH PETROLEUM COMPANY

CONTROL OF REGISTRANT
The registrant is not directly or indirectly owned or controlled by another corporation or by any government.

Ordinary shares

Of the registrant’s outstanding ordinary shares, with a nominal (par) value of N.fl. 1.25 cach, approximately
50% is in bearer form; the remainder is registered. As at March 21, 2000, no person was known by the
registrant to be the owner of more than 10% of any class of the registrant’s voting sccurities. As at the same datc
the Dircctors and officers of the registrant owned 98,020 ordinary shares of the registrant.

Priority shares

Royal Dutch has 1,500 priority shares outstanding, with 2 nominal (pas) value of N.fl. 1,000 cach. Each of the
members of the Supervisory Board and each Managing Direcror is the holder of 6 priority shares. Taken
together, the members of the Supervisory Board and the Managing Directors hold 54 priority shares. The other
1,446 priority shares were held, as ar March 21, 2000, by the Royal Dutch Priority Shares Foundation. The
Board of the Foundation consists of all the members of the Supervisory Board and the Managing Directors of
the Company. The important special rights artaching to these shares are as follows:

@ the determination of the number of members of the Supervisory Board and the number of Managing
Directots, provided thar the Supervisory Board should consist of at least five members and the Board of
Management of at least two members;

® the drawing-up of 2 binding nomination consisting of two persons for filling vacancies on the Supervisory
Board and the Board of Management;

® the granding of consent for amendment of the Articles of Association or for dissolution of the Company;

® the granting of consent for the assignment of priority shares.

The above-mentioned rights are exercised by the meeting of holders of priority shares. At this meeting one vote
may be cast for each priority share, but no one may cast more than six votes in all.

NATURE OF TRADING MARKET :

The principal trading markets for the ordinary shares of Royal Dutch are the stock exchanges in Amsterdam and
New York. Royal Dutch ordinary shares are also listed on stock exchanges in Austria, Belgium, France,
Germany, Luxembourg and Switzerland.

Royal Dutch ordinary shares are issuable in bearer ot regiscered form.

Royal Dutch shares of New York Registry may be transferred on the books of Royal Dutch and exchanged for
bearer shares, for shares of Hague Registry or for shares of New York Registry of other denominations at
Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New Yotk (/o J.B Morgan Service Center, PO Box 842006, Boston, MA
02284-2006) as Transfer Agent and Registrar. The Transfer Agent maintains “drop facilities” at the offices of
Securiaes Transfer and Reporting Services (STARS), 100 William Street, Galleria, New York, NY 10038, where
stock certificates and related instruments may be received and redelivered. Besides being listed and traded on the
New York Stock Exchange, Royal Dutch shares of New Yotk Registry are also admitted to unlisted trading
privileges on the following stock exchanges: Boston, Cincinnati, Midwest, Pacific Coast and Philadclphia.

Royal Dutch ordinary shares other than those of New York Registry are predominantly in bearer form.

At March 21, 2000, there were outstanding 846,070,847 shares of New York Registry representing
approximately 39.5% of the ordinary share capital of Royal Durch, held by approximartely 23,000 holders

of record.

The table on the next page sets forth che high and low prices for Royal Dutch NLA. 1.25 par valuc ordinary
shares on Amsterdam Exchanges and for Royal Dutch shares of New York Registry on the New York Stock

Exchange.
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54 ; Royal Dutch Pefroleum Company
Amsterdom s ) v;t
Period i e 4 3
1999
Ist Quarter 50.35 34.90 54.69 39.56
2nd Quarter 58.95 47.50 61.63 51.69
3rd Quarter 64.10 54.40 67.38 $7.44
4th Quarver 63.60 52.40 65.88 55.19
19984
Ist Quarter 56.04 45.51 59.25 49.25
2nd Quarter , 56.95 48.87 60.38 53.00
3rd Quarter 52.05 37.71 55.94 39.75
4th Quarrer 43.70 36.57 52.00 43.00

“ﬂ\?mﬂumpﬁwpﬁwhhﬁﬁngdhmmimmhbmry 1999 aro derived from the quatient of guilder shara prices and the fixed

guikden-per-euro convarsion nute of 2.20371.

EXCHANGE CONTROLS AND OTHER LIMITATIONS AFFECTING SECURITY

HOLDERS

The Dutch External Financial Relations Act of 1994 cnables the Minister of Finance ot the Central Bank of the
Nethetlands, as the case may be, to issuc regulations with regard o a number of financial transactions relating to
the import and export of capital.

The segulations as issued and applied ro date have not restricted the activities and operations of the registrant
and its Nethetlands subsidiaries.

There is no legislative or ather legal provision currently in force in the Netherdands or arising under the
constituent documents of the registrant restricting remittances to non-resident holders of the registrant’s
securities or affecting the rights of forcigners to hold or 1o cast votes for such seaurities. However, in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company, the maximum number of votes to be cast by any sharcholder is
48,000. A proposal will be submitted to the General Meering of Shareholders, to be held on May 9, 2000, 1o
abolish this limitation of voting rights by amendment of the Articles of Association.

TAXATION

Income tax

Royal Dutch is generally required by Netherlands law to withhold tax at a rate of 25% on dividends. Under the
current income rax convention between the United Seates and the Netherlands, dividends paid by 2 Netherlands
corporation to an individual resident of the United States, a corporation organised under the laws of the United
States (or of any state or territory thereof) or any other legal person subject to US Federal income tax with
respect to its worldwide income (a “US shareholder™) that qualifies for benefits under the convention are
gencrally subject to Netherlands withholding tax at a reduced rate of 15% of the amount of the dividend
(provided the shares on which the dividend is paid are not part of the business property of a permanent
cstablishment of the sharcholder in the Netherlands). In general, the entire dividend (induding the withheld
amount) will be dividend income to the US sharcholder, not cligible for the dividends received deduction
allowed to corporations, and the withholding tax will be treated 25 2 foreign income wx that is eligible for credit
against the shareholder’s US income taxes subject to certain limitations. Under a provision of the Netherlands
dividend tax act, Royal Dutch will apply a credit (up to a maximum of 3% of the gross dividend amount)
against the amount of the dividend tax withheld before remittance to the Netherlands ax authorities, For the
1999 final dividend this credit is nil% of the gross dividend from which dividend tax is withheld. The benefit of
this credit is passed to the Group in accordance with the arrangements between Royal Durch and Shell
Transport. Because of this credit, the US tax authorities may take the view that the Dutch withholding tax
eligible for credit by a US shareholder against its US income tax liability should be limited accordingly. Under
said convention, US organisations that are generally exempt from US Federal income tax and that are
constituted and operaced cxclusively to administer or provide pension, retirement or other employee benefits are
exempt at source from withholding tax on dividends reccived from a Netherlands corporation. US organisations
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that are exempt from US Federal income tax, that are operated exdusively for religious, charitable, scientific,
educational or public purposes and that would be exempt from tax in the Netherlands if they were organised,
and carried on all their activitics, therein, are subject ro withholding tax but may file for a full refund.

For Royal Dutch sharcholders resident in any counrry ather than the United States and the Netherlands, the
availability of a whole or partial exemption o refund of the Netherlands withholding tax is governed by the tax
convention, if any, between the Netherlands and the country of the shareholder’s residence.

Taxation on capital gains

Capital gains on the sale of sharcs of a Netherlands company by a US shareholder are generally not subject to

taxation by the Netherlands unless the US sharcholder has a permanent establishment in the Netherlands and
 the capital gain is derived from the sale of shares which are part of the business property of the permanent

establishment.

Succession duty and gift taxes

Shares of a Netherlands corporation held by an individual who is nor a resident or a deemed resident of the
Netherlands will generally not be subject to succession duty in the Netherlands on the individual's death unless
the shares ate part of the business property of a petmanent establishment sicuated in the Netherlands.

A gift of shares of a Netherlands company by a person who is not a resident or a deemed resident of che
Netherlands is generally not subject to Nethetlands gift tax.

MANAGEMENT

In accordance with its Articles of Association, Royal Dutch is managed by a Board of Management consisting of
at least two Managing Directors, under the supervision of a Supervisory Board consisting of ar least five
members. Managing Directors are appointed by the General Meeting of Shareholders from the petsons
nominated by the meeting of holders of priority shares and hold office until they retire unless relicved carier
from office by the General Mecting of Shareholders.

The Supervisory Board is a scparate body which doces not indude the Managing Directors. Members of the
Supervisory Board are appointed by the General Meeting of Sharcholders from the persons nominated by the
meeting of holders of priority sharcs. Each year, one of the members of the Supervisory Board retires by rotation
buc is eligible for re-¢election. Further, 2 member of the Supervisory Board retires after having served on the
Supervisory Board for a period of 10 years or rerires effecrive on the first day of July following the initial April 1
on which the member is 70 years of age.

The Managing Directors, metmbers of the Supervisory Board and officets of Royal Dutch at March 21, 2000 arc
set out in the table on the next page.
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Name/Posiion with registrant Appointed

Board of Management

M. A. van den Bergh

President and President, July 1, 1998
ing Director Managing Direcror, July 1, 1992

H. J. M. Roels

Managing Director July 1, 1999

J. van der Veer

Managing Director July 1, 1997

S A Board

L. C. van Wachem Managing Dircctor, 1977-1992 and President, 1982-1992

Chairman and Member Member of the Supervisory Board, July 1, 1992, and

of the Supetvisory Board Chairman of the Supetvisory Board, July 1, 1992

J- M. H. van Engelshoven ‘Managing Direcror, 1982-1991

Member of the Supervisory Board Member of the Supervisory Board, July 1, 1991

A. G. Jacobs

Member of the Supervisory Board January 1, 1998

Jonkheer A. A. Loudon

Member of the Supervisory Board . July 1, 1997

H. de Ruiter Managing Ditecror, 1983-1994

Member of the Supervisory Board Member of the Supervisory Board, July 1, 1994

J. D. Timmer ]

Member of the Supervisory Board ] July 1, 1996

General Aftarney

R. van der Vlist

General Artorney October 1, 1987

Mr. M. A. van den Bergh will relinquish his position as President of the Company on June 30, 2000. The
Supervisory Board and the Board of Directors will proposc to the General Meeting of Shareholders of the
Company, to be held on May 9, 2000, to appoint Mr. M. A. van den Bergh as a member of the Supervisory
Board with effect from July 1, 2000.

Mr. J. M. H. van Engelshoven will relinquish his position as member of the Supervisory Board effective July 1,
2000,

The Supervisory Board and the Board of Directors will propose to the General Mecting of Shareholders of the
Company, to be held on May 9, 2000, to appoint Professor Dr. J. Milberg to the Supervisory Board of the
Company with effect from July 1, 2000.

Mr. H. de Ruiter will retire by rotation as member of the Supervisory Board effective July 1, 2000, bur it will be
recommended to the General Meeting of Shareholders that he be re-clected.

There are no arrangements or understandings between Managing Directors, members of the Supervisory Board
or officers and any other person pursuant to which they were selected as Managing Directors, members of the
Supervisory Board or officers.

There are no family relationships between any Managing Director, member of the Supervisory Board or officer
and any other Managing Director, member of the Supervisory Board or officer.

Group Audit Committee

In 1976 the Supervisory Board of Royal Durch, jointdy with the Board of Directors of Shell Transport,
constiruted a Group Audit Committee composed of six members, three of whom are appointed by the
Supervisory Board of Royal Durch from among its members and three by the Board of Shell Transport from
among its members. The recenty revised functions of the Committee, acting in an advisory capacity to the
Supervisory Board of Royal Dutch and to the Board of Shell Transport, ate to review the financial reports of the
Royal Dutch/Shell Group of Companies and the effectiveness of the Group risk management and internal
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control procedures as well as the results of the independent auditors’ examination of the Group Financial
Statements. The Group’s approach to internal control is outlined on pages 48 and 49, from which it can be
secn that the risk and control monitoring procedures have been enhanced to provide, from the beginning of
2000, a process designed to deliver to management an ongoing rovicw of the risk associated with the fulfilment
of the objectives of the business. The members appointed by the Supervisory Board of Royal Dutch are

Mr. J. M. H. van Engelshoven, Mr. A. G. Jacobs and M. J. D. Timmer; the members appointed by the Board
of Directors of Shell Transport are Sir Peter Holmes, Professor R. J. O'Neill and Sir William Purves. Sir William
Purves is chairman of the Commitrec. .

Remuneration and Succession Review Commities

In 1967 the Supervisory Board of Royal Dutch, joindy with the Board of Shell Transport, constituted a
Remuneration Committee composed of six members, three of whom arc appointed by the Supervisory Board of
Royal Dutch from among its members and three by the Board of Shell Transport from among its members.
Following restatement of its terms of reference in 1980, this Committee was renamed Remuncration and
Succession Review Committec. The functions of the Committee are to make recommendations on all forms of
remuneration with respect o Group Managing Directors and to review matters relating 1o the succession to the
positions of Group Managing Dircctors. The members appointed by the Supervisory Board of Royal Dutch

are Mr. A. G. Jacobs, Jonkheer A. A, Loudon and Mr. L. C. van Wachem; the members appointed by the
Board aof Directors of Shell Transport are Sir Antony Adand, Sir John Jennings and Lord Oxburgh.

Mt L. C. van Wachem is chairman of the Committee.

Social Responsibility Committee

In 1997 the Supervisory Board of Royal Durch, joindy with the Board of Shell Transport, formed a Social
Responsibility Committee composed of six members, three of wham are appointed by the Supervisory Board of
Royal Dutch from among its members and three by che Board of Shell Transport from among its members. The
Commirtce reviews the policies and conduct of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group of Companics with respect to the
Group's Statement of General Business Principles and the Group’s Health, Safety and Environment Commirment
and Policy. The members appointed by the Supervisory Board are Jonkheer A. A. Loudon, Mr. H. de Ruiter and
M. ). D. Timmer; the members appointed by the Board of Directors of Shell Transport are Mr. T. A. Alireza,
Dr. Eileen Burile and Lord Oxburgh. Lord Oxburgh is chairman of the Committee.

Compensation of Directors and Officers

The aggregate amount of remuneration paid to or accrued for all members of the Supervisory Board, the
Managing Directars and officers of the registrant as 2 group by the registrant and companies of the Royal
Dutch/Shell Group of Companics for services in all capaciries dursing the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999,
was €3,077,645. The aggregate amount set aside to provide pension, recirement and similar benefits for
Managing Direcrors and officets of the registrant by the registrant and companies of the Royal Dutch/Shell
Group of Companies during the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999, was €1,100,798. Reference is made to
the information given in the Remuncration section on pages R-6 to R-9 relating to Directors’ emoluments.

Options fo purchase securities from registrant or subsidiaries

Four Group companies, two in the Netherlands (Shell Petroleurn N.V. and Montell Polyolefins B.V.), one in the
Unired Kingdom (The Shell Petroleum Company Limited) and one in the United States of America (Shell Oil
Company) have stock option plans under which options have been or may be granted to executives and other
key employees of thosc and other Group companies. Oprions granted under these plans are for terms of not
more than five or ten years at an option price of not less than 100% of the fair marker value on the date of

granting the option.

The securities of the registrant involved in the plans as of March 21, 2000, are 8,713,296 issued and
outstanding ordinary shares.

————
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The number of ordinary shares of the registrant under oprion at March 21, 2000, and the option prices of the
shares at the dates the options were granted, per share and in rotal, were as follows:

Option price®
’ Number of shares Average
Shell Peroleum N.V. 1,496,420 €38.65 €57,839,165 5 years
(13/12/00-10/12/02)
Shell Perroleum N.V. 2,115,920 €43.73  €92,530916 10 years
- (10/12/07-21/12/08)
The Shell Perroleum Company Limived 537,200 €33.25 €17,864,519 5 years
(13/12/00-10/12/02)
The Shell Perroleum Company Limited 1,381,800 €44.64 €61,684,468 10 years
(10/12/07-21/12/08)
Montell Polyolefins B.V. 294,450 €45.64 €13,438,002 5 years
(13/12/01-11/03/03)
Montell Polyolefins B.V, 166,500 €47.10 €7,842,150 10 years
(25/03/02-25/03/09)
Shell Oil Company 2,836,450 $52.08 $147,708,134 10 years
(28/02/10)

“Eura-denominaed opfion prices prior fo the fixing of the eur conversion rw in January 1999 are defivad from the quotient of guilder pricas and the fixed
guilden-per-euro conversion rate of 2.20371.
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THE “SHELL” TRANSPORT AND TRADING COMPANY, PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY

CONTROL OF REGISTRANT

The registrant is not directly or indirectly owned or controlled by another corporation or by any government.
As of March 21, 2000, no person was known by the regiscrant to be the owner of more than 10% of any class
of the registrant’s voting securities. As at the same date the Directots and officers of the registrant beneficially
owned 4,067,951 Ordinary shares of the registrant (induding the 3,330,391 shares under option as referred to
on page 63 of this report), being 0.041% of the total shares of that dlass outstanding.

NATURE OF TRADING MARKET

The principal trading market for the Ordinary shares of Shell Transpart is the London Stock Exchange. Shell
Transport Ordinary shares are also listed and traded on stock exchanges in Belgium, France and Germany. Shelt
Transport Ordinary shares are traded in registered or bearer form, but predominandy in registered form.

American Depositary Receipts representing New York Shares are listed and traded on the New York Stock
Exchange and are also admitted to unlisted trading privileges on the Boston, Cincinnari, Midwest and
Philadelphia Stock Exchanges. The depositary receipts are issued and exchanged at the office of the Bank of
New York, 101 Barclay Strcet, New York, NY 10286, as deposicary under a deposit agreement between Shell
Transport and the depositary and the holders of receipts.

Each New York Share represents six 25p Ordinary shares of Shell Transport deposited under the depaosic
agreement. At March 21, 2000, thete were outstanding 57,615,305 New York Shates representing
approximately 3.48% of the Ordinary share capital of Shell Transport, held by 2,168 holders of record.

The following table sets forth the high and low sales prices for Shell Transport’s registered Ordinary shares (of
25p nominal value) on the London Stock Exchange and for Shell Transport’s New York Shares (of £1.50
nominal value) on the New York Stock Exchange:

London New York
High Low High Low
Period £ £ $ $
1999
1st Quarter 4.23 3.04 42.38 30.50
2nd Quarter 4,94 4.06 47.88 39.94
3rd Quarter 5.41 4.47 52.56 45.00
4th Quarrer 5.29 4.34 50.81 42.25
1998
1st Quarcer 4.53 3.87 46.38 38.75
2nd Quarter 4.64 4.08 46.50 40.88
3rd Quarter 4.29 3.16 42,88 31.00
4th Quarter 3.76 3.29 38.63 33.38

EXCHANGE CONTROLS AND OTHER LIMITATIONS AFFECTING SECURITY
HOLDERS

There is no legislative or other legal provision currently in force in the United Kingdom or arising under the
constituent documents of the registrant restricting remittances to non-resident holders of the registrant’s
securities or affecting the rights of foreigners to hold or to cast votes for such securiries.

TAXATION

Dividends and tax credit

Individual sharcholders resident in the UK arc entitled to receive a tax credit wich dividends received from Shell
Transport. The amount of the credit is equal to 10/90ths of the cash dividend. The credit is not repayable in
cash when it exceeds the sharcholder's UK tax liability.

There is generally no withholding tax on UK dividends.
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Under the current Double Taxation Conventions between the Uniced Kingdom and both the United States and
Canada, a US or Canadian resident holder of American Depositary Receipts (ADRs) will (so long as a UK
resident individual shareholder is entitled to a tax credit) be entitled to receive an amount equal to the tax credit
less UK income tax of up to 15% of the combined amount of the dividend and such tax credit (provided the
shares on which the dividend is paid are not effectively connected with a permanent establishment of the
sharcholder in the UK).

1999 dividends ‘

US and Canadian resident shareholders will be entided to a tax credit repayment under the Double Taxation
Convention at a rate of 11.11% of the cash dividend, but subject to a withholding tax of 15% based on the
combined amount of the dividend and rax credit, with the result thar the amount of the repayment will be zero.
(It cannot go negative.) :

Dividends received by a US shareholder will represent dividend income not eligible for the dividends received
deduction allowed to corporations. By default, US shareholders will be taxed on the amount of dividend
actually received. However, 2 US shareholder may elect to be treated as having paid UK withholding tax (at an
11.11% rate) with respect to the receipt of such dividends. As a result of such a choice, any such withholding
tax would be treated as increasing the amount of the dividend received by the US sharcholder, and subject to
certain limitations, may be claimed as a credit or deduction for US federal income tax purposes. '

The entitlement to a rax credit of a sharcholder who is resident neither in the UK not in the USA depends
upon such double tax arrangements as exist berween the UK and the country of the shareholder’s residence.

Taxation on capital gains

Under the current Double Taxation Convention between the United States and the United Kingdom, capital
gains of residents of the USA may be tased in accordance with the provisions of UK domestic law. Under
present UK law, residents of the USA who are nor resident and not ordinarily resident in the UK will not be
liable for UK taxation on capital gains made on the disposal of their shares unless the shares are held in
connection with a trade or business carried on in the UK through 2 branch or agency.

Inheritance tax

Under the current Estate and Gift Tax Convention berween the United States and the United Kingdom,
Ordinary shares-held by an individual who is domiciled for the purpose of the Convention in the USA and is
not for the purpose of the Convention a national of the UK will not be subject ro UK inheritance tax on the
individual’s death or on a gift of the shares in the seven years prior to death unless the shares are part of the
business property of a permanent establishment of the individual in the UK, or, in the case of a sharcholder who
performs independent personal services, pertain to a fixed base situated in the UK.

Stamp duty reserve tox

The United Kingdom Government currently imposes 2 1.5% stamp duty reserve tax on the creation of new
depository receipts representing shares of UK companies. The tax does nor apply to the purchase and
subsequent transfer of depository receipts already in issue, nor where the holder surrenders an cxisting
depositoty receipe in exchange for the underlying shares. In the case of New York shares represented by ADRs
issued on or after March 18, 1991 by the Bank of New York, the depository under the deposit agreement
referred to in the third paragraph under the Item entitled “Narture of trading market” on page 59, the tax
payable is calculated on the value of the underlying registered shares at the date such shares are vansferred 1o che
Bank of New York. ’

MANAGEMENT

The business of Shell Transport is managed by a Board of Directors of not less than three and not more than 20
in number, There are 11 Directors in office, of whom three are Managing Directors. Managing Directors arc
appointed by the Board from among the members of the Board, Under the Articles of Association, Managing
Directors are not required to rerire by rotation with the other Directors and offer themselves for re-clection by
the sharcholders but, as previously announced, the Managing Directors will, in fucure, offer themselves for re-
election ori a regular basis. The Articles also require one-third of the Directors subject to retirement by rotation,
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to retire at cach Annuat General Meeting. The Combined Code of good corporate governance published by the
London Srock Exchange suggests that Directors should be subject 1o re-clection at intervals of no more than
three years. Suitable amendments to Shell Transport’s Articles of Assaciation will be proposed to sharcholders on
both counes when next the Articles are revised. In the meancime, Directors will retire by rotation in advance of
the Article requirements to ensutc compliance with the Combined Code and where appropriate will offer
themselves for re-clection. In 2000 five Dirccrors will rerire at the Annual General Meeting in accordance with
these arrangements.

The Directors, Managing Directors and officers of Shell Transport at March 21, 2000, were:

Name/Pasifion with registrant , Appointed
M. Moody-Sruart Managing Director, July 1, 1991
Chairman and Managing Direcror o Chairman, July 1, 1997
P B. Wacs

Managing Director : July 1, 1997
P D. Skinner

Managing Director January 1, 2000
Sir Antony Acland GCMG GCVO

Director November 1, 1991
T. A. Alireza

Director November 12, 1997
Dr. Eileen Burde CBE

Director July 8, 1998
Sir Peter Holmes MC

Director July 1, 1982
Sir John Jeanings CBE FRSE

Director July 1, 1987
Professor R J. O Neill AO

Director June 1, 1992
Lord Oxburgh KBE FRS

Director January 10, 1996
Sir William Purves CBE DSO

Director Ocrober 1, 1993
Miss J. E. Munsiff

Secretary Augusc 1, 1993

The Directors retiring by roration at the Annual General Meeting to be held on May 9, 2000 are: Mr. T. A.
Alireza; Sir Peter Holmes; Mr. M. Moody-Stuart; and Mr. B B. Warts. All foue, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the meeting. Sir Antony Adand will also be reriring ar the Annual General Meeting
and, having attained the age of 70, will not be offering himself for re-clection. Mr. P D. Skinner was appointed
a Director by the Board with effect from January 1, 2000 and will also offer himself for election at the Annual
General Meeting.

There are no arrangements or understandings between Directors or officers and any other person pursuant to
which they were selected as Directors or officers. There ate no family relaonships berween any Direcror or
executive officer and any other Ditector or executive officer.

Group Audit Committee

In 1976 the Board of Shell Transpon, joindy with the Supervisory Board of Royal Dutch, constituted a Group
Audit Committee composed of six members, three of whom are appointed by the Board of Shell Transport from
among its members and three by the Supervisory Board of Royal Dutch from among its members. The recently
tevised functions of the committee, acting in an advisory capacity to the Board of Shell Transport and to the
Supervisory Board of Royal Dutch, are to review the financial reports of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group of
Companies and the cffectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control procedures as well as to
consider the results of the Auditors’ examination of the Group financial statements. The Directors of Shell
Transport appointed to the committee are Sir Peter Holmes, Professor R. J. O'Neill and Sir William Purves; the

————
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members appointed by the Supervisory Board of Royal Dutch are Mr. J. M. H. van Engclshoven,
Mc A. G. Jacobs and Mx. J. D. Timmer. Sir William Purves is chairman of the commitree.

Remuneration and Succession Review Committee

In 1967 the Board of Shell Transpor, jointly with the Supervisoty Board of Royal Dutch, constituted a
Remuneration Committee composed of six members, three of whom are appointed by the Board of Shell
Transport from among its members and three by the Supervisory Board of Royal Dutch from among its
members. Following restatement of its terms of reference in 1980, this committee was renamed as
Remuneration and Succession Review Commiteee. The functions of the committee arc to make
recommendations on all forms of remuneration with respect to Group Managing Directors and to review
matters relating to the succession to the positions of Group Managing Directors. The members appointed by
the Board of Direcrors of Shell Transport are Sir Antony Acland, Sir John Jennings and Lord Oxburgh; the
members appointed by the Supervisory Board of Royal Dutch are Mr. A. G. Jacobs, Jonkheer A. A. Loudon and
Mr. L. C. van Wachem. Mr. L. C. van Wachem is chairman of the commitres, .

Social Responsibility Committee

In 1997 the Board of Shell Transport, jointly with the Supervisory Board of Royal Dutch, constituted a Social
Responsibility Committee composed of six members, three of whom are appointed by the Board of Shell
Transport from among its members and threc by the Supervisory Board of Royal Dutch from among its
members. The committee reviews the policies and conduct of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group of Companies
with respect to the Group's Statement of General Business Principles as well as the Group's Health, Safety
and Environment Commitment and Policy. The members appointed by the Board of Shell Transport are

Me. T. A. Alireza, Dr. Eilcen Burtle and Lord Oxburgh; the members appointed by the Supervisory Board of
Royal Dutch are Jonkheer A. A. Loudon, Mr. H. de Ruiter and M. J. D. Timmer, Lord Oxburgh is chairman

of the committee.

Compensation of Directors and Officers

The aggregate amount of remuneration paid to or accrued for Direcrors, Managing Ditectors and officers of the
registrant as a group by the registrant and companics of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group of Companies for services
in all capacities during the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999, was £2,178,536. The aggregate amount set
aside to provide pension, retirement and similar bencfits for Direcrors, Managing Dircctors and officers of the
registrant by the registrant and companies of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group of Companies during the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1999, was nil.

Reference is made to the information given in the Remuneration section on pages §-9 10 $-12 relating to
Ditectors’ emoluments,

Options fo purchase securities from registrant or subsidiaries

Two Group companies, one in the Netherlands (Shell Petroleum N.V.) and onc in the United Kingdom (The
Shell Petroleum Company Limited), have stock option plans under which options have been or may be granted
to excutives and other key employecs of those and other Group companics. Options granted under these plans
are at a price of not less than 100% of the fair marker value at the date of granting the option and for the terms
indicated in the tabulation on the nexe page.

The sccurities of the registrant involved in the plans as of March 21, 2000, are 34,150,004 issued and
outstanding Ordinary shares.
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The “Shell” Transport and Trading Company, Public Limited Company : 63

The number of Ordinary shares under option at March 21, 2000, and the option prices of the Ordinary shares
at the date the options were granted, per share and in total, were as follows:

Option price
Plan . Nﬂ:m’“ por shore o ::m dotes)
Shell Peroleum N.V. 3,015,100 £3.63 £10,953,340 5 years
(13/12/00-10/12/02)
Shell Petroleun NV, 3.929.100 £3.72 £14,634,727 10 years
(10/12/07-21/12/08)
The Shell Penroleum Company Limited 9,118,400 £3.25 £29,648,867 5 years
(13/12/00-10/12/02)
The Shell Pemral Company Limired 18,087,404 £3.98 £71,922,353 10 years

(10/12/07-21/12/08)

During 1986 The Shell Pettoleun Company Limited established a savings-related share option scheme
approved by the United Kingdom Inland Revenue pursuant to the Finance Act 1980 (now consolidated into the
Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988) under which options have been or may be granted over Ordinary
shares of the registraat to eligible cmployees of certain Group companies in the United Kingdom. Options
granted under the scheme arc at a price of not less than 100% of the fair market value shortly before the date of
grant and are normally excrcisable after compliction of a contractual savings period of cither three of five years.
In 1998 Shell Petroleum N.V. and Montell U.K. Limited established similar savings related shase option
schemes. At March 21, 2000, 20,591,820 issued and ourstanding Ordinary shares of the registrant were under
option to such employees putsuant to the rules of those schemes at prices between 230p and 518p.

The Directors and officers of the registrant as a group held at March 21, 2000, options over 3,330,391 shares of
the registrant. Of these shares, Mt. Moody-Stuart held 1,517,000 under option, Mt. Skinner held 673,014
under option, and Mc. Watts had 856,914 under option. Reference is made to the information given in the
Remuneration section on pages $-9 to S-12 relaring to Directors’ emoluments.

-
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64 The “Shell” Transport and Trading Company, Public Limited Company
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FOIA Confidential

Treatment Requested /00102043

J—




Case 3:04-cv-00374-JAP-JJH Document 348-3 Filed 10/10/07 Page 13 of 50 PagelD: 22781

65
INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND EXHIBITS
Page
{A} ANANCIAL DATA®
ROYAL DUTCH PETROLEUM COMPANY:
Report of independant Accountants R1
Finandial Stolements
Profir and Loss Account R2
Stavement of Appropriadon of Profit R-2
Stteraent of Cash Flows ®2
Balanoe Sheer R2
Notes to Financial Staternents R3
Remuneration R6
THE “SHELL* TRANSPORT AND TRADING COMPANY, PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY:
Report of independent Accountants $1
Financial Statements S
Profit and Loss Account $2
Suatement of Retained Profic 52
Balanoe Sheet $2
S of Total Recognised Gains and Losses $3
Satement of Cash Flows 3
Notes to Financial Statements 54
Remuneration 59
ROYAL DUTCH/SHELL GROUP OF COMPANIES:
Report of independent Accountants G1
Financdial Statements
Sratement of Income G2
Satement of Comprehensive Income and Parent Companies’ Intcrest in Group Net Assets G2
Statement of Assets and Liabilides G3
Satement of Cash Flows G4
Notes to Financial Smtements G5
Supplementary Information — Oil and Gas
Reserves G-I
Sundardised measure of discounted future cash fows G33
Supplementury Information — Derivative and ofher Financial instruments and
Derivative Commodity instruments Ga4
(B} EXHIBITS
L1 Articles of Association of Royal Dutch (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the
Registradon
Statement on Form $-8 (Registration No. 333-7590) of Royal Durch and Shell Transport)
1.2 Memorandum and Arricles of Association of Shell Transport (incorparated by reference ro
Exhibit 3.2 of the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration No. 333-7590) of Royal
Dutch and Shell Transport)
23.1 Consent of KPMG Accountants N.V,, The Hague E-1
23.2 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers, London E-2
23.3 Consenr of KPMG Accountants N.V,, The Hague and Priccw:u-.rhouscConpcrs, London E-3
23.4 Consent of KPMG Accountants N.V,, The Hague E4
23.5 Consent of KPMG Accountants N.V, The Hague and PricewarerhouseCoopers, London £5
'deduhnotinckddfunbemminadhnmumﬂ\eygmm pplicable or not required. Allematively, the requs d infarmation is shown in the financial
sloterments or notes thereo, S ised finemcial informetion in aggregate for majority-owned subsidiaries not consolidated and 50% or less~owned
parsons, tha invesiments in which are } for by the equity method, s been provided in the nates to the Finoncial sirioments, Separate financiol

statements for amy wuch individual majority-ownad subsidiony not consolidated or 50% or kess-owned penan, the investmants in which am accounted for by
tho cuity mehod, heve boun cmimed bacours pore comstmoke o e o S0% o
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SIGNATURES

As to the undersigned registrant, this Annual Reporr consists solely of the information referred to on the cross-
reference sheet headed Royal Dutch and does not indude the information as to Shell Transport on page 33
under the heading “Selected Financial Data”, on page 35, on pages 59 through 63 and pages S-1 through S-12.

The material in this report is stated as ar December 31, 1999, except that certain 2000 subsequent cvents are
stated down to March 21, 2000, :

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiscrant certifies thar it

meets all of the requirements for filing on Form 20-F and has duly caused this Annual Report to be signed on
its behalf by the undersigned, thercunto duly authorised.

N.V. KONINKLIJKE NEDERLANDSCHE PETROLEUM MAATSCHATPI}

M.A. van den Bergh

M.A. van den Bergh
President and Managing Director

R. van der Vlisc

R. van der Vlist
General Artorney

The Hague
April 10, 2000
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Signatures . : . 67

As to the undersigned registrant, this Annual Report consists soldly of the information referred to on the cross-
reference sheet headed Shell Transport and does not include the informarion as to Royal Dutch on page 33
under the heading “Selected Financial Data”, on page 34, on pages 53 through 58 and pages R-1 through R-10.

The material in this report is stated as at December 31, 1999, excepr that certain 2000 subscquent events are
stated down to March 21, 2000.

Pursuant to the tequirements of Section 12 of the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant certifics thar ic
meers all of the requirements for filing on Form 20-F and has duly caused this Annual Report to be signed on
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorised.

THE “SHELL” TRANSPORT AND TRADING COMPANY, PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY

M. Moody-Stuart

M. Moody-Stuart
Chairman and Managing Director

London
April 10, 2000
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(This page is intendonally blank.)
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ROYAL DUTCH PETROLEUM COMPANY
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To: Royal Dutch Petroleum Company

We have audited the Financial Statements of Royal Dutch Petroleum Company for the years 1999, 1998 and
1997 appearing on pages R-2 to R-5. The prepararion of these Financial Statemencs is the responsibility of the
Board of Management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Finandial Statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards genenally accepted in the United Stares, Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obrain reasonable assurance abour whether the
Financial Statements arc free of marerial misstacement. An audit includes oamining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the Financial Statements. An audic also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the Board of Management in the preparation of
the Financial Statements, as well as evaluating the overall Financial Statement presentation. We believe chat our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. .

In our opinion, the Financial Statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Royal Dutch Petroleum Company at December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the results of its opcrations
and its cash flows for cach of the thee years in the period ended December 31, 1999 in accordance with the
accounting policies described on page R-3. .

The report of independent accountants on the 1999, 1998 and 1997 Financial Statements of the Royal

Dutch/Shell Group of Companies, which form part of the Financial Statements of Royal Dutch Peoleum
Company, appears on page G-1.

KPMG Accountancs NV,

KPMG Accountants N.V,, The Hague

March 8, 2000
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FOIA Confidential
Treatment Requested RJW00102048




Case 3:04-cv-00374-JAP-JJH Document 348-3 Filed 10/10/07 Page 18 of 50 PagelD: 22786

R-2 Royal Dutch Petroleum Company
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
Profit and Loss Account €miion  Balance Sheete € million
Note 1999 1998 1997 Dec 31 Duc 31
Share in the ner income of companies Noto 1999 1998
of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group 3 4853 245 4,351 Fxedanen
les Administraive expenses 4 4 4  Finandial fixed assers
Investments in comy
— A9 A1 e Group 4 33,733 28468
Interest income 16 16 7 Current assets
Profit before taxation 4,865 257 4,354  Receivables
less Taxation 4 41 Dividends receivable from comp
x Other receivables 8 1
Cash at bank 263 439
Stalement of Appropriation of Profit £ ilfion 2231 2223
Now 19w 1998 1997  Current liabififies
Final dividend 1,844 1,790
Profit after taxation 4,861 253 4,353 Other liabilidi 5 ' 13 ' 12
Taken from/(v0) Statutory LS
investment reserve 4 (L,670) 2879 (1,007) 1,857 1,802
Undistribured profic ac Current assets bess currant liabililies 374 421
beginning of year ‘ 49 431 101 gy agets hess current liabilifies 34,107 28,889
Unclaimed dividends forfeived - -~ 1 Sharcholders’ equi -
Available for distriburion 3,640 3,563 3,448 Paid-up capital . 6
less Interim dividend® 139 1324 1,265 Ordinary shares 1,216 1,216
Final dividend 18445 1,790 1752 Priotity shares 1 1
3,238 3,114 3,017 1,217 1,217
Undistributed profit ot end of year 402 449 431 Share premium reserve 1 1
Olnchuding 4% cumudative prek dividend g to €27,227 on priority shares, Invesement resetves -4
p.vm.;aa ol dividend, wbfect o finalisoion by the Ganerol Mesing of Sharchokders 1 Sranucory : 19,304 15,070
on May 9, 2000 Currency tanslation differences (1,153)  (265)
Other 14,336 12,417
32,487 27,222
Statement of Cash Flows - € milion T fiseribured profic 02 44
1999 1998 1997
34,107 28,889
m“:?‘w and °Thn appropriation of profit has elready boen incorporated in the Balkence Sheet.
Dividends received from mmdﬁml dividend, nbpabﬁmﬁmon by the General Masting of Sharehokders 10
Group companics 2,977 3232 2,828
Interest received 13 18 5
Other (8) “) 4
Net cash inflow/(outfiow] from returns
on investments and servidng of finance 2,982 3,246 2,829
Taxation
Tax (paid)/recovered 2) ) -
Financing
Dividends paid (3.156) (3.012) (2.716)
Increase/(Decrease) in cash at bank {176) 229 113
Cash at January 1 439 210 97
Cash ac December 31 263 439 210
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Royal Dutch Pefroleum Company : R-3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 The Compa
Royal Dutch, one of the Parent Companies of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group, is a holding company which, in

conjunction with Shell Transport, owns, directly or indirectly, investments in the numerous companies known
collectively as the Royal Dutch/Shell Group of Companies,

The Financial Statements of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group of Companies and the Notes thereto on pages G-2 to
G-30 form part of these Notcs.

Arrangements berween Royal Dutch and Shell Transpore provide, inser alia, that notwithstanding variations in
sharcholdings, Royal Dutch and Shell Transport shall share in the aggregate net assets and in the aggregate
dividends and interest received from Group companies in the proportion of 60:40. It is further arranged that
the burden of all taxes in the nature of, or corresponding to, an income tax leviable in respect of such dividends
and interest shall fall in the same proportion. Notc 1 to the Financial Starements of the Royal Dutch/Shell
Group of Companies (on page G-5) gives details of supplemental arrangements which have been made between
Royal Dutch and Shell Transport regarding dividends, taxes and tax benefits.

2 Accounting policies

The Financial Statements of Royal Durch include che Financial Scatements of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group of
Companics. The Financial Statements of Royal Dutch have been prepared in accordance with legal requiremens
and generally aceepted accounting principles in the Netherlands.

The investments in and the share in the net income of companies of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group are -
accounted for by the equiry method (see also Notes 3 and 4). Accounting policies used by the Group are given
on pages G-5 to G-9.

Assets and liabilitics in foreign currencies are translated into euro amounts at year-end rates of exchange,
whereas results for the year are translated at average rates. Euro amounts arc translated from dollacs ac average
rates for the period, excepr for the fourth quarrer 1998 where the total of the special charges ($4,386 million)
has been translated at the average rate for the year (weighted according to quarterly net income excluding these
special items). Currency translation differences arising from translating the investments in companies of the
Royal Dutch/Shell Group are taken to Investment reserves (see Note 4).

Administrative expenses, Interest income and Taxation are stated at the amounts atributable to the respective
financial years.

3 Share in the net income of companies of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group

The amount dealt with under this heading in the Profit and Loss Account has been calculated as 60% of the net
income of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group as presented in the Group Financial Statements on page G-2. The
dividend for 1999 distributed from Group companics to Royal Dutch amounted to €3,183 million (1998:
€3,124 million). Net income has been translated into a euro amount using the weighted average rate for the
year.

4 Investments and reserves
The 60% intcrest in Group net assets is cqual to the interest applicable to Royal Dutch as shown in the
Suatement of Comprehensive Income and Parent Companies’ Interest in Group Net Assers (on page G-2).

Royal Dutch’s investments in the companies of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group are suted at an amount equal to
the 60% share in Group net assets, translated into a euro amount at the year-end rate. As from January 1, 1998,
these investments have been adjusted for 60% of the Shell Transport shares held by Group companies
(December 31, 1999: €196 million).

The difference of €32,487 million beeween the cost of the investments and the amounts at which the
investments are stated in the Balance Sheet has been taken ro Investment reserves.

The Statutory investment reserve comprises Rayal Dutch’s 60% share in the undistributed ner income of Group
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R-4 Royal Dutch Pefroleum Company

companies which has asisen a5 from January 1, 1984; Royal Dutch’s shate in the undistributed ner income of
Group companies acoumulated until that date is induded in Investment reserves — Other.

Royal Dutch’s 60% sharc in the cumulative Group cutrency translation differences arises as a result of
translating the assets and liabilities of non-dollar companies to dollars at year-cnd rates of exchange (sec Notc 4
on page G-10) and is shown under Investment fescrves as Currency manslation differences. The net
increase/decrease in Parent Companies’ shares held by Group companics represents the balance of sales and
purchases and changes in valuation of these sharcs minus dividends received on these shares.

Other comprehensive income, net of tax, consists of currency translation differences, unrealised gains/losses on
securitics and minimum pension liability adjustments (sec Note $ on page G-10).

The movements during the year in the value of the Group reporting currency (dollar) against the Royal Dutch
reporting currency (euro) lead to currency translation differences. .

As the amounts dealt with under Investment reserves have been, or will be, substantially reinvested by the
companies concerned, it is not meaningful to provide for taxes on possible future distributions out of carnings
rerained by those companies; no such provision has thercfore been made. Furthermore, it is not practicable to
estimate the full amount of tax or the withholding tax clement.

The movements in 1998 and 1999 are shown in the following statement:

$ miflion € million
Investemt EIerves
&0% interest Cumency
in Group Royal Dutch anslation
nel axsely  investments Stottory  differences Other Total
Balance at Decamber 31, 1997 36,232 33,078 18,966 (548) 13,414 31,832
Parent Companies” shares held by Group companies at January 1, 1998° (294) :
Movements during the year 1998
Dividend discributions from Group companics in cxcess of net income (3,217)  (2.879) (2,879) - - (2.879)
Net (increase)/decrease in Parent Companies' shares held by Group companies (127) 7 - - (71) (71)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 383 328 80 248 - 328
Transladon effect arising from movements in dollar/euro rare (1,988) (1,097) 35 {926)  (1.988)
Balonce at December a1, 1998 32,977 28,468 15,070 (265) 12,417 27,222
Movements during the year 1999
Undistributed net income of Group companies 1,772 1,670 1,670 - - 1,670
Net (increase)/decrease in Parent Companics” shares held by Group companies (246) (231) - - (231) (231)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (800) (796) 49 (845) - (796)
Translation effect arising from movements in dollar/euro rate 4,622 2515 (43) 2150 4,622
Balance at December 31, 1999 33,703 33,733 19,304 (1,153) 14,336 32,487
. i is i nies’ shares i i fnvestment reserves
e e S e T L A S S, D e ks s,
on page .
5 Other liabilities € million
Dec 3% Deac 31
1999 1998
Dividends and dividend tax payable 9 11
Accounts payable 2 1
Corporaton tax 2 -
13 12
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Royal Dutch Petroleum Company ' R-5

6 Share capital

The authoriscd share capital as laid down in the Articles of Association is expressed in guilders and amounts to
N.fl. 4,000,000,000. The authorised share capital is divided into 3,198,800,000 ordinary shares with a par value
of N.fl. 1.25 each and 1,500 priority shares with a par value of N.. 1,000 cach.

At the end of 1999, 2,144,296,352 ordinary shares and 1,500 priority shares were issued and paid up. The
issucd and paid-up capical at December 31, 1999 thus amounted to N.fl. 2,681,870,440. Translated into a curo
amount, the issued and paid-up capital was €1,216,979,748.

7 Undistributed profit

"The amount of the undistributed profit ar December 31, 1999 is evident from the Statement of Appropriation
of Profit on page R-2.

8 Royal Dutch shares held by Group companies
The movements in 1999 in Royal Durch shares held by Group companies were as follows:

€ million
Royol Duich
60% intorest .

Numbar of in the

shares  Book value  book value

Balance ot beginning of year 6,971,806 274 164
Purchased 8,315,100 499 300
Sold (1,160,500) (35) (21)
Balance ot end of year 14,126,406 738 443

These movements relase to the granting and exercise of stack options and to other incentive plans as mentioned
in Note 25 to the Financial Statements of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group of Companics on page G-27.

9 Statement of Cash Flows
The Statement of Cash Flows is shown on page R-2.

10 List of companies of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group
A list of companies drawn up with due observance of the provisions in Artides 379 and 414, Book 2 of the
Netherlands Civil Code, has been depasited at the office of the Commercial Register in The Hague.

11 Remuneration of members of the Supervisory Board and Managing Directors .

In 1999 an amount of €454,394 (1998: €476,715) was borne by Royal Dutch and by Royal Dutch/Shell
Group companies in respect of remuneration, pensions and other similar retirement benefits for members and
former members of the Supervisory Board for their duties on the Supervisory Board of Royal Ducch and for
ducies simultancously performed by a number of them as Directors of Royal Dutch/Shell Group companies,
respectively.

Furthermore, in 1999 an amount of €4,214,896 (1998: €5,182,417) was borne by Royal Dutch and by Royal
Dutch/Shell Group companies in respect of remuneration, pensions and other similar retirement benefits for
Managing Directors and former Managing Dircctors for their duties on the Board of Management of Royal
Dutch and for duties simultaneously performed by them in Royal Dutch/Shell Group companies, respectively.

Addirional information regarding the remuncration and benefits of the Managing Directors and members of the
Supervisory Board is provided on pages R-6 to R-9.

———
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R-6 Royol Dutch Petroleum Company
REMUNERATION

Ph

The philosophy for the remuneration of Group Managing Directors, including those who are also Managing
Directors of the Company, is consistent with thar for senior management throughout the Group: to attract and
recain high-quality scaff ac all levels and motivate them towards exceptional performance. It secks to align all
senior staff with the goals of the Group and its various businesses, and with shareholders’ inrerests. The
semunerarion package is made up of base salary, short-term annual bonus and long-term incentives.

Base salary

The base salary scales for Managing Directors are set by reference to internal and external marker surveys of
companies of similar size and international scope. Base salaries arc reviewed annually and the scales for Dutch
Managing Directors werc increased by 2.5% with effect from January 1, 1999, The salarics of non-Dutch
Managing Dircctors are related to thosc in their home country. Progression of an individual Managing
Director's salary to the target position is usually over a theee-year period from appointment. .

Annual bonus

An annual bonus is determined by the Remuncration and Succession Review Commirtee by reference to the
extent of achievement of challenging Group performance targets set as part of the annual Group business plan.
The targets take into account financial, operational, social and environmental objectives. The maximum bonus
payablc is 50% of base salary. The bonus payable to Managing Directors in respecs of the year 1999 is 45%.

Long-term incentives

Long-term incentives for Managing Dircctors are provided through the Group Stock Option Plans which have
been in operation since 1967, and which are believed to create 2n effective method of aligning the interests of
Managing Directors and other Group senior managers with those of shareholders,

From 1998 options granted to the Managing Directors of Royal Dutch are granted for 10 years with a three-
year vesting period. The same terms apply 1o all other optionees under the Plans. Furthermore, the options
granted to Managing Dircctors in 1998 for the first time had performance conditions attaching o 50% of the
grant. The performance conditions arc based on the Total Shareholder Return aver a three-year period from
October 1, 1998 to September 30, 2001, measured by the average weighted share price of Royal Dutch and
Shell Transport over the 10-day period at the beginning and end of said theee-year period as compared with
equivalent data for other major integrated oil companies and after taking into account such other factors as the
Remuneration and Succession Review Committec may deem appropriate. It is intended that a proportion of
future granes to Managing Directors as well as to the most senior executives will be subject to similar
performance conditions based on Total Shareholder Rerurn, The proportion of the share options subject to the
performance conditions which will either become unconditional or lapse will be detcrmined for the Managing
Directors at the absolute discretion of the Remuneration and Succession Review Committce.

The shates subjecr to the Plans are existing issued shares of the Company and no dilution is involved.

Consideration is given on an individual basis to the granting of options each year.
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Royal Dutch Petroleum Company = : R-7

The emoluments of the Managing Directors of Royal Duich
The emoluments for 1999 of the Managing Dircctors of Royal Dutch whilst in office were:

<
1999 1998 1997
M. A. van den Bergh
Salaries 895,288 891,972 542,951
Performance-related element 444,204 0 170,369
N 1,339,492 891,972 713,320
S. L Miller
Salaries 382,233 947,621 821,964
Performance-related element - 0 333,861

382,233 947,621 1,155,825

H. J. M. Raels

Salaries : 327,052 - -

Performance-related element 292,416 - -
619,468 - -

). van der Veer

Salaries 706,953 655,552 315,115

Performance-related clemenc 325,088 0 155,306

1,032,041 655,552 470,421

Share options

On recommendation of the Remuneration and Succession Review Commitree, options are granted to the
Managing Directors under one of the Group Stack Option Plans once a year, excepr that no option is granted
to 2 Managing Ditector within one year before his retirement. All options granted to the Managing Direcrors
relate 1o Royal Dutch shares, and those granted before 1998 can, subject to certain restrictions, genetally be
exercised during a period of five years from the date of grant. As from 1998 the options arc granted for 10 years,
bur are nor exercisable within three years of grant, and 50% of those options are subject to the performance
conditions as st out in the preceding section on long-term incentives. The exercise price of cach option is the
market value of the shares at the date of granting the option,

In order that the stock option granc may follow annual Group results and business and individual performance
appraisals, the grant date has been changed from December to March, commencing in March 2000, Thus no
grants were made in 1999,

———
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R-8 Royal Dutch Pefroleum Company

The interests of the Managing Dircctors under all the stock option plans of Group companies are shown below:

Number of options €
Gronted  Exercised ket
1188 n..mﬂ ey 311248 B EE By
M. A. van den Bergh
32,500 - - 32,500 _43.92 = 10,12.02
61,000 - - 61,000 41,16 - 21.12.08
H. ). M. Roels
10,000 - 10,000 ~- 3240 5544 11.12.01
14,000 - - 14,000 48.92 - 10.12.02
28,000 - - 28,000 41.16 - 21,1208
J. van der Veer ’

7.000 -~ 7,000 - 2522 4920 13.12.00
20,000 -~ 10,000 10,000 3240 55.95 11.12.01
32,500 - - 32,500 48.92 - 10.12.02
43,000 - — 43,000 41.16 ~ 21.12.08

While in ofiice as @ g Diractor M. 5. L Millar hod boon grontsd 48,000 options of on exercisa prics of €32.40 fexpiry dote 11.12.01)in 1996 and
96mmwm&hmahmnmwrmqmmn os of €48.92 expiry date 10.12.07} and €41.16 fexpiry dote
21.12.08), respectively. In 1999 ha sxcrcised the 48,000 options ot a mmmJeu.os.

Penstons/Retirement benefits :

The principal source of Managing Directors’ pensions is the Stichring Shell Pensioenfonds. This is a defined
bencfit fund to which Managing Directors contribure the same percentage of relevant earnings as other
employees. For employees in the Netherlands this percentage was zero during the year. The employing
companies contribute to the pension fund on the advice of actuarics, and the cmploying company contribution
rate in 1999 was 0%. Managing Directors retire on June 30 following their 60ch birthday. There are provisions
in the pension fund for a surviving dependant’s bencfic of 70% of acrual or prospective pension. In casc of
death-in-service a lump sum of two times annual salary is paid.

The following table shows the amount of pension entitlements eamed and the amounts which would be paid
annually on retitement, based on service to the end of 1999,

€ thousand

Yoars of  Increase in Accumulated
Group accruad annuol
service pension pansion

Age as ot asat during as ot
N1299 A2y 1999 31.12.99
M. A. van den Bergh 57 31 55 546
H. ]J. M. Roels 51 28 156 309
J. van der Veer 52 28 44 341
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Royal Dutch Petroleum Company ' : R-9

The emoluments of the members of the Supervisory Board of Royal Dutch
The emoluments of the members of the Supervisory Board of Royal Dutch whilst in office during 1999 were:

€

1999 1998 1997

L €. van Wachem '
Supervisory Board fees 56,723 56,723 49,916
Commiteee fees 6,807 6,807 4,538
Holding Corapany fees 28,391 28,116 27,786
91,921 91,646 82,240

K. V. Cassani

Supervisory Board fees 22,689 45,378 40,840
Committee fees . 3,403 6,807 4,538

26,092 52,185 45,378

J. M. H. van Engelshoven

Supervisory Board fees 45,378 45,378 40,840
Commitire focs 6,807 6,807 4,538
Holding Company fees 28,391 28,116 27,786
80,576 80,301 73,164
A. G. Jocobs _ 3
Supervisory Board fees 45,378 45,378 -
Commirmee fees 10,210 6,807 —
55,588 52,185 -
Jonkheer A. A. Loudon
Supervisory Board fees 45,378 45,378 20,420
Commitree fees 13,613 13,613 2,269
58,991 58,991 22,689
H. de Ruiter
Supervisory Board fees 45,378 45.378 40,840
Committee fecs 6,807 6,807 -
Holding Company fecs 28,391 28,116 27,786
80,576 80,301 68,626
J. D. Timmer
Supervisory Board fees 45,378 45,378 40,840
Committee fees 13,613 13,613 4,538

58,991 58,991 45,378

e ———
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R-10 ‘ Royal Dutch Petroleum Company

(This page is intentionally blank.)
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S-1

THE “SHELL” TRANSPORT AND TRADING COMPANY, PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To: The “Shell” Transport and Trading Company, Public Limited Company

We have audited the Financial Satements of The “Shell” Transport and Trading Company, Public Limited
Company for the years 1999, 1998 and 1997 appearing on pages $-2 to $-8. The preparation of the Financial
Statements is the responsibility of the Company’s Directors. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on those
Financial Sratements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial
Statements are free of marerial misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, cvidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the Financial Starements. An audit 2lso indudes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by the Company's Directors in the preparation of the Financial
Statements, as well as evaluating the overall Financial Statement presentation. We believe thar our audits provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion. ’

In our opinion, the Financial Statements referred to above present faicly, in all material respects, the financial
position of The “Shell” Transport and Trading Company, Public Limited Company at December 31, 1999 and
1998, and the results of its operarians and its cash fows for each of the thrce years in the period ended
December 31, 1999 in conformity with the accounting principles described in Note 1 on page $-4.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

PricewaterhouseCoopers, London

March 9, 2000
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52 The “Shell” Transport and Trading Company, Public Limited Company

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
Profit and Loss Account £ milion  Balance Sheet £ million

Note 1999 1998 1997 Dec 21 Dec 31
Income from shares in companies ) Note 1999 1998
of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group 3 13,3921 1,3424 1,301.0 Fxed assets
Interest and other income 52 8.3 12.3  Investments
1,397.3 1,350.7 11,3133 Shares (unlisted) in companics

Administrative expenses 3.8 4.4 6.8 of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group 5 14,1532 13,4124
Profit on ordinary acrivities ! Current assets
before taxation 13935 13463 13065 Debrons ) _

Tax on profit on ordinary activides 4 0.4 12 2.6 thhdmnzs Nregnwmcsf;ol?cwmwmu 452 8ls4
" of the cll Group ¥
D“S'm pmﬁt for lhe ):lu;y 1,393.1 1,345.1 1,303.9 Other debtors o1 1.4

of carnings rewin:
companies of the Royal Dhutch/ 8453 8168
Shell Group/(Dismributions from Cashatbank
retained earnings) 5__ 7305 (1,292.8) 464.2  Short-term deposics 290 619
aftributable to shareholders 2,123.6 52.3 1,768.1 ) 874.8 904.7
Statement of Retained Profit Lmiion  Amounts due t companies
999 1998 loo7  of the Royal Durch/Shell Group 0.4 60.3
" Corporation tax 0.2 0.4
Dsrpuable profit for the year 13931 13451 13039 iimed dividends 74 69
profit at beginning of year 204 183 176  Other creditors and accruals 24 28
14135 13634 13205 Preference dividends accrued 03 0.2
deducs YRR e e Ordinary dividend proposed 8452 8154
Dividends on non-cquity shates ¢ 835.9 _ 886.0
First Preference shares 0.1 0.1 0.1 Net cument assets 189 187
Second Preference shares 0.7 0.5 0.5 Total assets less current lichilities 14,172.1 13,431.1
0.8 0.6 0.6 Capital and reserves
14127 1,3628 1,320.9 Equiry intereses
deduct Called-up share capiral 6 ’
Dividends on equity shares: Ordinary shares 2,485.9 2,485.9
25p Ordinary shares Revaluation reserve 5 11,653.6 10,912.8
Intcrim of 5.5p in 1999, 5.3p Profit and Loss Account 20.6 20.4
i; 1998 uf‘ii 3.1; t;ns 1997I9 5469 5270  507.1 14,160.1 13.419.1
roposed of 8.5p in 1999, A
final of 8.2p in 1998 and Non-equity interests
8.0p in 1997 8452 8154  795.5 C;l'ed-l,upéhm ﬂiml 6 20 20
rst Preference shares . .

- - 13921 13424 1,026 Second Preference shares 10.0 10.0
Distributable retgined 0
profit at end of year 20.6 20.4 18.3 120 12.

Shareholders’ funds 7 14,172.1 13,431.1

Earnings per 25p Ordinary share® pence

1999 1998 1997
Distributable profit for the year 14.0 13.5 13.1
Share of earnings retained by companics
of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group/
(Distibutions from retained carnings) 7.4 (13.0) 4.7
Eamings for the year
oftributable fo shareholders 21.4 0.5 17.8
Of the aamings per share amounts shawn above, which are disclosed in accordance with
Financial Reporting Stondard MNo. 14, those rekting o eamings for the year ctributobie i
sharcholden any, in the epiion of the Directors, the mest meemingful since they refiact the
full ertitlement of the Compary in the income of Group companies.
“On 9,943,509,726 shares in issue after the copikalisation isue in hme 1997,
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The “Shell” Transport and Trading Company, Public Limited Company 53
Statement of Totol Recognised Gains and Losses £ million
Note 1999 1998 1997
Distriburable profit for the year 1,393.1 1,345.1 1,303.9
Unrealised surplus/(deficit) :

on revaluation of investments
in companies of the

Royal Dutch/Shell Group 5 7408 (1,168.5)  (289.7)

Total recognised gains and

losses relafing 1o the year 21339 1766 10142

Statement of Cash Flows € million
1999 1998 1997

Returns on investments and
servicing of finance
Dividends received from companies

of the Royal Dutch/Shell Grong 13623 13185 1,143.2
Incerest received 5.6 9.9 11.6
Preference dividends paid [(10v4} (0.6) (0.6}
Other (3.2) (3.8) (5.2)
Net cash inflow/(eutflow} from retums

on investments and servicing of finance 1,364.0 1,324.0 1,149.0
Taxation

Tax (paid)/recovered (0.2) (0.2) (6.5)
Equity dividends poid

Ordinary shares (1,362.3) (1,322.5) (1,252.9)
Management of liquid resources

{short-term deposits)

Net cash inflow/(oudflow) from

management of liquid resources ' 329 80.1 112.0
Finoncing

Net increase/(dearease) in amounts due to
companics of the Royal Durch/Shell Group ~ (59.9)  (69.2) 5.9

Increase/{Decrease) in cash (25.5) 122 7.5
Cash at January 1 26.0 13.3 6.3
Cash at December 31 0.5 26.0 13.8

Net debr, being amounts due to companics of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group less cash, decreased during
1999 from £34.3 million to net funds of £0.1 million (1998: net debt decreased from £115.7 million to
£34.3 million).

The Company adopts a policy of minimising cash holdings whilst ensuring that operating costs and the
financing of dividend payments are met. The Company’s debtors and creditors are shore-term and are all
denominated in sterling,

At December 31, 1999 the Company had £29.0 million (1998: £61.9 million) on short-rerm deposit with third-

party banks. The fixed interest rate earned on these stering deposits at year end was 5.5% (1998: 7.1%). The
carrying amount and fair value of these deposits are the same.

———
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S-4 The “Shell” Transport and Trading Company, Public Limited Company
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Accounting policies and convention
The accounting policies of The “Shell® Transport and Trading Company, p.l.c. (Shell Transpott) are explained in
the relevant notes.

The Financial Statements on pages $-2 to $-8 hercin have been preparcd in accordance with the Companies Act
1985 and with applicable accounting standards. They have been prepared under the historical cost convention
modified by the revaluation of the investments in companics of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group (see Note 5). The
disclosures described in Note 3 have been derived from the Royal Durch/Shell Group Financial Statements,

2 The Company

Shell Transport, onc of the Parent Companies of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group of Companics, is 2 holding
company which, in conjunction with Royal Dutch Petroleum Company (Royal Dutch), owns, directly or
indirectly, investments in the numerous companies referred to collectively as “the Group”. Shell Transpore has no
investments in associated undertakings other than in companies of the Group, - -

Arrangements between Royal Dutch and Shell Transport provide, inter alia, that notwithstanding variations in
sharcholdings, Royal Dutch and Shell Transport shall share in the aggregate nct assers and in the aggregate
dividends and interest received from Group companies in the proportion of 60:40. It is further arranged that
the burden of all taxcs in the nature of or corresponding to an income tax leviable in respect of such dividends
and interest shall fall in the same proportion.

The 60:40 arrangements referred to above have been supplemented by further arrangements, beginning with
Group dividends payable to the Parent Companies in respect of 1977, whereby cach Parent Company is to
bring into account rowards its share in the 60:40 division of dividends from Group companics rax credits and
other tax henefits which are relaced to the liability to tax of a Group company and which aise to the Parent
Company or which would arise to the holders of its Ordinary shares if there were to be an immediate full
onward distribution to them of Group dividends (for which purpose all such sharcholders are assumed to be

In 1997 the UK government announced changes to tax law in respect of company distributions, including the
abolition of advance cotporation tax (ACT). In view thereof, the Parent Companies agreed thac the tax benefit
1o Shell Transport for the 1997 final dividend and the 1938 interim dividend (which were paid as forcign
income dividends) would be 4% of toral Group income divisible for 60:40 purposes. It was also agreed that, as
a result of the abolition of ACT s from April 6, 1999, there would be no tax benefit to Shell Transport for the
1998 final and subsequent dividends. This has the effect of Shell Transpott teceiving the whole of its

entitlement in cash,

3 Share in the income and assets of Group companies

Shell Transport records income from shares in Group companies, in the form of dividends, in its prafit and loss
account. The Company’s investments in Group companies are stated at the Direcxors’ valuation at an amount
equivalent to Shell Transport’s 40% intercst in the Group net assets as disclosed in the Group Financial
Statements on pages G-2 to G-30 together with 40% of the carrying amount of Parent Companies’ shares held
by Group companies. The difference between the cost and the amount at which the investments are stared in
the balance sheet has been taken to Revaluation rescrve.

Shell Transport's share in certain jtems relating to the two Group Holding Companies and Shell Perroleum Inc.,
described in Note 5, is set out on the next page. These companies own direcdy or indirectly the investments,
which, with them, comprise the Group. The following supplementary information has thercfore been provided
in respect of the Group Holding Companies and Shell Petroleum Inc. in the aggregate and is derived from the
Group Finandal Statements on pages G-2 to G-30.
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The “Shell” Transport and Trading Company, Public Limited Company : S5
£ million
1999 1998 1997
Sales proceeds : 37,0193 33,4402 41,908.8
Sales txes, excise duties
and similar levies 10,9644 10,7817 10,6192
Net procesds 26,0549 22,6585 31,289.6
Operating profit after net currency
gains/losses 37668 7519 37820
Interest and other income 133.8 152.1 2228
Interest expense 309.8 304 285.6
|ncqmo before taxation 3,590.8 581.6 3,719.2
Taxation - 1,405 462.6 1.814.0
Minority interests - 59.6 3.4 10.8
Net income for the year 2,122.7 84.6 1,894.4
Fixed assets includin
Parent Companies’ shares 19,677.4 20,110.1 19,584.0
Current assets 8,7353 6,580.6  8,074.8
Curtent liabilides 82680 75035  7,180.0
Long-term liabilities 2,286.0 2,091.3 1,973.6

Mlmﬁgmhmmbwwt?m&nm'mﬂdbyﬁmpm

This supplementary information has been caleulated in conformity with the accounting policies on pages G-5
to G-9 of the Group Financial Statements. These policics differ in certain respects from accounting principles
genenally accepted in the United Kingdom, the principal difference being in respect of the provision for deferred
taxation. If deferred taxation had been provided in the Group Financial Starements under UK accounting
principles, it has been estimated chat Shell Transport's share of Group net assets would increase by
approximateiy £1.3 billion (1998: £1.3 billion).

Shell Transport’s distributions from Group companies were as follows:

£ million
1999 1998 1997

Disuibutions from Group companies
and wx benefic referable thereto 1,392.1 1,401.0 1,516.3
deduct referable tax benefic — 58.6 215.3

Distributions from Group companics  1,3921  1,3424  1.301.0

4 Tax on profit on ordinary activities

£ million
1999 1998 1997
Corporarion tax ar 30.25% (1998: 31%
and 1997: 31.5%) in respect of interest
income less administrative expenses 0.4 1.2 2.6

No raxation liability arises in respect of income from shares in companies of the Group as this income consists
of a distribution, which is not subject to taxation, from a UK resident company.

Shell Transport’s share of raxation borne by Group and associated companies is given in Note 3.
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5-6 . The “Shell” Transport and Trading Company, Public Limited Company

5 Investments in Group companies

Shell Transport has 40% equity sharcholdings in The Shell Petroleum Company Limited, which is registered in
England and Wales, (consisting of the whole of its 102,342,930 issued “B” shares of £1 cach) and in Shell
Petroleum N.V., which is incorporated in the Netherlands {consisting of the whole of its 44 issucd “B” shares of
N.f. 5,000,000 each). The remaining 60% equity shareholdings in thesc two companies (consisting of
153,514,395 "A” shares of £1 each of The Shell Petroleum Company Limited and 66 “A” shares of N.{1.
5,000,000 each of Shell Pecraleum N.V)) are held by Royal Dutch.

Shell Transport also holds 1,600 Class “B” shares of US $1 cach in Shell Petroleum Inc,, which is incorporared
in the State of Delaware, USA. These shares, together with the 2,400 Class “A™ shares of US $1 cach in that
company held by Royal Dutch, carry voting control of Shell Petroleum Inc. but are restriced in regard to
dividends o 12% of their par value per annum. Shell Petrolcurn N.V. holds the femaining 1,000 shares of US
$1 each in Shell Perroleum Inc., which are unrestricted in regard to dividends.

The Shell Petroleum Company Limited, Shell Perroleum N.V. and Shell Petroleum Inc. own, directly or
indirectly, the investments representing the total Group interest in the other companies which, with them,
comprise the Group,

The Directors’ valuation of Shell Transport’s investments in Group companies comprises the following:

£ million
1999 1998
Cost of Shell Transport’s invesunents
in Group companies . 178.4 1784
Shell Transport's share of:
Profits capitalised by Group companies 800.8 781.0
Eamings retained by Group companies 13,279.9 12,569.2
Parent Companies’ shares held by
Group companics (274.5) (168.7)
Ochar comprehensive income (416.5) (87.0)
Currency translation differences 310.6 (29.2)
13,878.7 13,2437
40% of carrying of Parent Companies’ :
shares held by Group companics 274.5 168.7

14,1532 134124

The movements in the Revaluation reserve are represented by:

£ million
1999 1998
As at January 1 10,912.8 12,0813
Share of earnings tetained by Group
companies out of net income/(Disaibutions
from retained earnings) 730.5 (1,292.8)
Share of other comprehensive
incame for the year (329.5) 1535
Currency wanslation differences 339.8 (29.2)
740.8 (1,168.5)
As ar December 31 11,653.6 10,9128

The eanings retained by Group companies have been, or will be, substantially reinvested by the companies

concerned, and any taxation unprovided on possible future distributions out of any uninvested retained carnings
will not be material.
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The “Shell” Transport and Trading Company, Public Limited Company : $7

The Company will continue to hold its investments in Group companies. However, as the investments arc
stated in the Balance Sheet on a valuation basis, it is necessary to report thar, if the investments were to be
disposed of for the amount stated, a taxation liability of approximately £914 million would arise

(1998: £756 million).

6 Share capital and dividends
At Deccmber 31, 1999 the share capital of the Company was:

] \

Authorised  Alloted, colledop

ond fully poid
Equity shares
Ordinary shares of 25p cach 2,487,000,000 2.485,877,432
Non-equity shares :
First Preference shares of £1 each 3,000,000 2,000,000
Second Preferenoe shates of £1 each 10,000,000 10,000,000

13,000,000 12,000,000
2,500,000,000 2,497,877,432

The First and Second Prefercnce shares (the Preference shares) confer on the holders the right to a fixed
cumulative dividend and rank in priority to Ordinary shares. On a winding up or repaymenr the Preference
shares also rank in priority to the Ordinary shares for the nominal value of £1 per share (plus a premium, if any,
equal to the excess of the daily average price for the respective shares quoted in the Stock Exchange Official List
for a six months period preceding the repaymenc or winding up) but do not have any further rights of
participation in the profits or assets of the Company. The Preference shares do not have voting righes unless
their dividend is in arrears or the proposal concerns 4 reduction of capital, winding up, an alteration of the
Articles of Association or otherwise directly affects their class rights. ‘

In accordance with the Finanee Act 1972, dividends in respect of the First and Second Preference shares were
payable berween April 6, 1973 and April 5, 1999 ar the fate of 3.85% per annum and 4.9% per annum
respectively. Under the Finance Act 1998 the dividend rights on the Prefercnce shares for payments after
April 5, 1999 were restored to the respective nominal coupon rates of 5.5% per anoum and 7% per annum.

The Preference shares are imedeemable and form part of the permanent capital of the Company. The number in
issuc has remained unchanged since 1922. The fair valuc of the Preference shares based an marker valuations at
December 31, 1999 was 98.1 pence per share (1998: 103.0 pence per share) for the First Preference shares and

118.8 pence per share (1998: 110.0 pence per share) for the Second Preference shares.

7 Reconciliation of movements in Shareholders’ funds

£ million
1999 1998
Distributable profit for the year 1,393.1 1,345.1
Dividends (1,392.9) (1,343.0)
Unrcalised surplus/(deficic)
on revaluation of investments
in companies of the
Rayal Dutch/Shell Group (Note 5) 740.8 (1,168.5)
Net addition tof(reduction in)
Sharcholders’ funds 7410 (1,166.4)
Sharchalders’ funds at January 1 13,4311 14,597.5
Sharcholders’ funds at Deccmber 31 14,172,1 13,431.1
T

—
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$-8 The “Shell” Transport and Trading Company, Public Limited Company

8 Auditors’ remuneration

Audit fees of Shell Transport amounted to £7,515 in 1999, £7,515 in 1998 and £7.515 in 1997. Other fees
amounted ro £7,130 in 1999, £7,130 in 1998 and £4,080 in 1997. All amounts are stated exclusive of value
added tax.,

9 Aggregate Directors’ emoluments
£

1999 1998 1997
Salaries, fees and benefirs 1,447,542 1,350,691 1,315,862
Petformance-related element 519,300 0 233,000

1,966,842 1,350,691 1,548,862

‘Excess’ redrement benefits (Note iii) 25,231 15,839 - 4,128

Realised share option gains 1,971,360 1,347,783 1,355,880

Notes '

(il The highest pid Director fincluding rectised shore option gains and excluding pansicns} in 1997, 1998 and 1999 was Mc M. Moody-Smar,

(1] gfdﬁz:mdumm disclosad, £316,817 in 1999, £294,427 i 1998, and £229,688 in 1997 were bome by Shell Transport and charged in the Profit
s Account,

(iii)Emudimmhmdihmhmmdmﬁndedﬁmmﬂhpddborm& by Directors ond past Directon which sxceed those 1o
w’\idnbeywereami'lnclmd‘ndmamwhidlﬁebumﬁhﬁrﬁhwmwyuﬂnw%ﬂﬂ,Im,whidmri:hlm«.
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The “Shell” Transport and Trading Company, Public Limited Company : §-9
REMUNERATION

Philosophy

The philosophy for the remuneration of Group Managing Dircctors, including those wha are also Directors of
the Company, is consistent with that for senior management throughout the Group: to artract and retain high-
quality staff at all levels and motivate them towards exceptional performance. It secks to align all senior staff
with the goals of the Group and its various businesses, and with shascholders’ interests. The remuncration
package is made up of base salary, short-term annual bonus and long-term incencives, The membership of the
Group Remuneration and Succession Review Commitres is set out on page 62,

Base salary

The base salary scales for Managing Directors are sct by reference to internal and external market surveys of
companies of similar sizc and international scope. Base salarics are reviewed annually and the scales were
increascd by 3.5% with effect from January 1, 1999, Progression of an individual Managing Director’s salary to
the target position is usually over 2 three-year period from appointment. o

Annual bonus .

An annual bonus is determined by the Remunerarion and Succession Review Committee (REMCO) by
reference to the extent of achicvement of challenging Group performance targets set as part of the annual Group
business plan. The targets take into account finandial, operational, social and environmental objectives. The
maximum bonus payable is 50% of base salary. The bonus payable to Managing Directors in respect of the year
1999 is 45%. The annual bonus payment is non-pensionable.

long-term incentives

Long-term incentives for Managing Directors are provided through the Group Stock Option Plans which have
been in operation since 1967, and which are believed to create an effective method of aligning the interests of
Managing Directors and other Group seniot managers with those of shareholders. From 1998 oprions granted
to the Managing Directors of Shell Transport are granted for 10 years with a three-year vesting period. The same
terms apply to all other optionees under the Plans. Furthermore, the options granted to Managing Directors in
1998 for the first time had performance conditions attaching to 50% of the grant. The performance conditions
are based on the Total Sharcholder Return over a threc-year period from October 1, 1998 to September 30,
2001, measured by the average weighted share price of Royal Dutch and Shell Teansport over the 10-day period
at the beginning and end of the said three-year period as compared with equivalent data for other major
integrated oil companics and after taking into account such other factors as REMCO may deem appropriate. It
is intended that a proportion of future grants to Managing Directors as well as to the most senior executives will
be subject to similar performance conditions based on Total Shareholder Return. The proportion of the share
options subject to the performance conditions which will either become unconditional or lapse will

be determined for the Managing Directors at the absolute discretion of REMCO. In order that the stock option
grant may follow the announcement of annual Group results as well as business and individual performance
appraisals, the grant datc has been changed from December to March, commencing in March 2000. Thus,

no grants were made in 1999,

The shares subject to the Plans arc existing issued shares of the Company and no dilution of sharcholders’
equity is involved.

Consideration is given on an individual basis to the granting of options cach year.

Total remuneration
Denails of the toral remuneration and benefits of each Director are set out on pages S-11 and $-12.

Service contracts

The Managing Ditectors of Shell Transport do not have setvice contracts with their employing company, and
their entilement to notice is the standard for all senior staff - three months. There are no predetermined
termination compensation arrangements in place for the Managing Directors.
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510 The “Shell” Transport and Trading Company, Public Limited Company

Pensions/Refirement benefits

- The principal sources of Managing Directors’ pensions are the Shell Contributory Pension Fund (for service in
the UK) and the Shell Overseas Conuibutory Pension Fund (for previous scrvice overseas). Both Funds are
defined benefit plans to which Managing Directors contribute 4% of relevant earnings. Managing Directors
retire on Junc 30 following their 60ch birthday, and the maximum pension is two-thirds of their remuncration,
excluding bonuscs. There are also provisions, as for all members of the above Funds, for 2 dependant’s benefit of
60% of actual or prospective pension, and a lump-sum death-in-scrvice payment of three times the
annual salary.

During 1999 two Directors accrued retirement benefits under defined benefir plans (1998: two; 1997: three).
No Director has accrued benefits under a money purchase bencfit scheme.

Salaries/fees payable to Managing Directors, rotalling £1,028,500 in 1999, £906,392 in 1998 and £834,250 in
1997, count for pension purposes in the Shell Contributory Pension Fund. The payment of employers’
contributions to the Fund, which is open to United Kingdom employees of the member companies, has

upon acruarial advice been suspended since January 1, 1990 because of the financial position of the Fund.

Mt M. Moody-Stuart and Mr. P B. Warts accrued pension benefiss during the year as detailed below. The
transfer values are caloulared using the cash equivalent transfer value method in accordance with Acruarial

Guidance Note GN11.

£ thovsand

Yaars of Met - Accumulated

Group increase  Transher annmuol

service inocerved  value of pension

Age as ot as ot pension  pension o at

31.12.99 31.02.99  during 1999 increase 31.12.99

M. Moady-Stuart 59 36 24 362 424

P B. Warts 54 31 27 341 252
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The “Shell* Transport and Trading Company, Public Limited Company : S-11
Emoluments of Directors in office during 1999 £
199 1998 1997
M. Moody-Stuort
Salaries and fees 668,822 637,852 491,718
Benefins - - -
Performance-relared element 301,050 0 132,750
969,872 637,852 . 624,468
Realised share option gains 811,620 370462 767,880
1,781,492 1,008,314 1,392,348
P. B. Watis
Salaries and fees 472,622 431,113 197,254
Benefits 17,275 14,535 4,829
Performance-related element 218,250 0 100,250
708,147 445,646 302,333
Realised share option pains 112,200 32,321 - -
820,347 477,967 302,333
Sir Anfony Adand
Direcrors’ fees 25,000 25,000 22,500
Committ=e fees 6,250 3,750 3,750
31,250 28,750 26,250
T. A. Alireza
Direcrors’ fees 25,000 25,000 3,403
Committee fees 3,750 3,024 -
28,750 28,024 3,403
Dr Gileen Buttle
Directors’ fees 25,000 12,030 -
Comminee fees 1,875 - -
26,875 12,030 -
Sir Peter Holmes
Direcrors' fees 25,000 25,000 22,500
Comutuiteee fees 6,875 6,774 3,750
Holding Company fees 18,503 18,883 19,152
50,378 50,657 45,402
Pensions 27,342 26,460 25,346
77,720 77,117 70,748
Sir John Jermings
Salaries and fees - - 450,214
Benefits - - 7,381
Directors’ fees 25,000 25,000 -
Committee fees 7,500 5,000 -
Holding Company fees 18,503 18,883 -
51,003 48,883 457,595
Pensions 35,389 34,433 16,875
Realised share option gains 1,047,540 945,000 588,000
_ 1,133,932 1,028,316 1,062,470
Professor R. J. O'Neill
Directors’ fees 25,000 25,000 22,500
Committee fees 6,250 5.000 3,750
31,250 30,000 26,250
Lord Oxburgh
Directors’ fees 25,000 25,000 22,500
Committee fees 11,850 9,516 3,750
36,850 34,516 26,250
Sir William Purves
Directors’ fees 25,000 25,000 22,500
Committee fees 7,467 9,333 5,600

32,467 34,333 28,100
Note: The performance-rekated elemant is. included in the year % which it rekates.
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5§12 The “Shell” Transport and Trading Company, Public Limited Company
Share options
The interests of Shell Transpore Dirccrors under all the stock option plans of Group companies dusing 1999
were:
Nurber of aptions
Market
Gronted Exercived price at
A during during At Exercise dote of Expiry
1.1.99 the year the year N.12.99 price axercise dete
Sir John Jennings .
474,000 - 474,000 - 286p  507p 13.12.00
M. Moody-Stuart )
324,000 - 324,000 - 227p  4775p 141299
333,000 - - 333,000 286p - 131200
333,000 - - 333,000 326p - 1L1201
" 387,000 - - 387.000 439% - 10.12.02
464,000 - ~ 464,000  363p - 21.12.08
P.B. Wattse
120,000 - 60,000 60,000 286p 473p 13.12.00
194,700 - - 194,700 326p - 1L12.01
272,000 - - 272,000 439 - 10.12.02
325,000 - - 325,000 363p - 21.12.08

AUn axddition, Mr.ﬁ!.wmuknh&mewmmshﬂm&npﬂvyhmmd%msd&w
to purchasa 5,214 Shell Transport Ordinary shares ot 330p. This epfien wes gramed on Dicernber 12, 1996
and matures on February 1, 2002,

(il All the above figures have been adjused fo reflect the 24or-1 mpionliwﬁunimn-&ninon.lmao,1997,mdnaminu:ﬁumdw;isepﬂmun
rovnded fo the nearest whole penny.

{ii) Nlhummhmduhownluhbshlﬂmmponw shares, Nnmmhpnd&mngih All optiont. are exsrcisable ot market price {no
discount] at grant. The optiors with on expi up»a\d'm‘?J 2002 were %mnmngmmmnwhdhrr"
Mmmmwhﬁmhnd\mmun?gm SO%dhmopmmwhpabnpufonm

m]ThemvddlemdmpmdhOmfnmyuhmonDam‘hrﬁl 1999wm5145pmd’hpvmwdumgﬁ\oywrwm30425pb54050p

(iv) There wara no cha in the above interesh, in aptions during the period from Decsmber 31, 1999 o March 3, 2000. On his o ppointment on January
1, 2000 Mr. P. D, anhﬂmqwm“?,movwmyhm undtrcmdmptmplunmds,zldodnmrydmmunderh

g'\vm
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G

ROYAL DUTCH/SHELL GROUP OF COMPANIES
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To Royal Dutch Petroleum Company and The “Shell™ Transporc and Trading Company, p.Lc.

We have audited the Financial Statements appearing on pages G-2 to G-30 of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group of
Companics for the years 1999, 1998 and 1997. The preparation of Financial Statements is the responsibility of
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Financial Statements based on our audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepred in the United Sates. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabic assurance abour whether the Finandal
Statements are free of marerial misstatement. An audit includes examining, on 3 test basis, evidence supporring
the amounts and disclosures in the Financial Stacements. An audir also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management in the preparation of Financial Statements, as
well as evaluating the overall Financial Statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion. o

In our opinion, the Financial Statcments referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group of Companies ar December 31, 1999 and 1998 and the resules of its
operations and its cash flows for cach of the threc years in the period ended December 31, 1999 in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles in the Netherlands and the United States,

KPMG Accountants N V.

KPMG Accountants N.V,, The Hague

PricewaterhouseCoopers

PricewaterhouseCoopers, London

March 8, 2000
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G-2 Rayol Dutch/Shell Group of Companies
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of Income - $ million
Note ) ‘1999 1998 1997
Sales proceeds 149,706 138,274 171,657
Sales taxes, excise duties and similar Jevies 44,340 44,582 43,502
Net proceeds 105,366 93,692 128,155
Caost of sales 81,839 70,674 100,394
Gross profit 23,527 17,018 27,761
Selling and distribution expenses 8,195 9,342 10,981
Administrative expenses 830 1,414 1133
Exploraton : 1,086 1.603 L,173
Research and development 505 799 662
Operating profit of Group companies v 12,911 3,860 13,812
Share of operating profit/(loss) of associared companies ) 2321 . .. (756) 2,130
Operafing profit 15,232 3,104 15,942
Interest and other income 7 541 629 912
Interest cxpense 8 1,253 1,333 1,170
Currency exchange gains/(losses) 1 5 (465)
Income: before taxation 14,521 2,405 15,219
Taxation 9 5,696 © 1913 7.422
Income after taxation 8,825 492 7.797
Income applicble to minority interests 241 142 44
Net income 8,584 350 7,753
Statement of Comprehensive Income and Parent Companies’ Inferest in Group Net Assety $ million
Note 1999 1998 1997
Net income 3 8,584 350 : 7.753
Other comprehensive income, net of tax: 5
currency manslation differences 19 (1,443) 482 (4,508)
unrealised gains/(losses) on securities 205 169 7
ini pension liability adjusements (95) (13) 5)
ive income 7,251 988 3,233
Ner distributions to Parent Companies 3 (5,631) (5.712) (5.853)
Parene Companies’ shares held by Group companies
at January 1, 1998 25 (490)
Increase in Parent Companies’ shares held by Group
companics 25 (411) (210)
Parent Companies’ i in Group net assets at January 1 54,962 60,386 63,006
Parent Companies’ interest in Group net assets ot December 31 4 56,171 54,962 60,386
Applicable to:
Royal Dutch  (609%) 33,703 32,977 36,232
Shell Transport (40%) 22,468 21,985 24,154
56,171 54,962 60,386
FOIA Confidential RUW00102071
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Rayal Duich/Shell Group of Companies G-3
Statement of Assets and Liabilities $ million
Dec 31 Dec 31
Note 1999 1998
Fixed assets
Tangible assers 10 56,598 60,777
Intangible assess 10 2,641 2,609
Investmenss
associated companies 6 16,686 16,686
securities 14 1,680 1,664
other 924 1,022
Totol fixed assets 78,529 82,758
Other long-term assels n 4,962 4,711
Current asseh Co
Inventorics ) 12 7,738 5.976 .
Accounts receivable 13 18,603 13,887
Short-term securities 14 8 19
Cash and cash equivalents 14 4,043 2,717
Total current assets 30,392 22,599
Current libifities: amounts duc within one year
Shore-rerm debt 15 6,922 7,778
Accounts payable and accrued Liabilics 17 18,108 15,875
Taxes payable 9 5,092 4,053
Dividends payable to Parent Companies 3,341 3.434
Total current liabilities 33,463 31,140
Net current assets/(liabilities) (3,071) (8,541)
Toral assets less anrent fiabilities 80,420 - -78,928
Long-term liabilities: amouncs due after mote than one year
Long-term debt 15 6,009 6,032
Other 18 3,243 2,647
9,252 8,679
P - -
Deferred raxarion 9 7,053 - 7,155
Pensions and similar obligations 21 2,563 2,830
Decommissioning and restoration costs 22 2,539 2,601
] 12,155 12,586
Group net assets before minority interests 59,013 57.663
Minoriry intcrests 2,842 2,701
Net assels 56,171 54,962
O —
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G-4 Royal Dutch/Shell Group of Companies
Statement of Cash Flows (see Note 19} ' $ million
Note 1999 1998 1997
" Netincome 8,584 350 7,753
Adjustments to reconcile nex income to cash flow provided
by operating activitics
Depreciation, depletion and amortisarion 10 6,520 9,423 7,375
Profic on sale of assers (1,366) (241) (186)
Movements in:
invenrories (2,059) 1,107 (143)
accounts receivable . {5,049) 1,972 126
accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3,066 486 (145)
taxes payable 1,260 (559 (629)
short-term securides - 16 359 3,568
Associated companies: dividend morc/(less) than net income - I3 423 - 2581 (129)
Deferred raxation and other provisions (55) (1.453) (444)
Long-term liabilities and other ) (522) 562 (460)
Income applicable to minority interess 241 142 44
Cash flow provided by operating aclivities ) 11,059 © - 14,729 16,730
Cash flow used in investing activifies
Capital expenditure (including capivalised leases) 10 (7,409) (12,859) (12,274)
Proceeds from sale of assets 5,026 1,42 1,035
New investments in associared companies 6 (1,024) (1,282) (1,726)
Disposals of investments in assocated companies 549 362 527
Other investments (165) (142) (1,167)
Cash Row used in investing activities (3,023) (12,500) (13,605)

Cash flow providad by/(used in] financing adivities
Long-term debr (including short-term parr)

new borrawings . 1,798 1,572 3,844
tepayments (1,575) (1,532) (4,100)
223 40 (256)
Net increase/(decrease) in short-term debt (922) 1,850 150
Change in minority interests 54 521 (600)
Dividends paid ro:
Parent Companies (5,446) (5,819) (5,129)
minority interests (165) (174) (253)
Cosh flow provided by/{used in) financing activities (6,256) (3,582) (6.088)
Incrense in Parent Companies’ shares held by Group companies (411) (210)
Currency translation differences relating vo cash and cash equivalents (43) (26) (412)
Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,326 (1,589) (3,375)
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 2,717 4,306 7,681
Gash and cash equivalents at Decemnber 31 4,043 2,717 4,306
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Royal Dutch/Shell Group of Companies : : G5 -
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 The Royal Dutch/Shell Group of Companies

The Parent Companies, Royal Dutch Petroleum Company (Royal Dutch) and The “Shell” Transport and
Trading Company, p.l.c. (Shell Transport) are holding companies which together own, directly or indirectly,
investments in numerous companies known collectively as the Royal Dutch/Sheil Group. Group companies
are engaged in all principal aspects of the oil and natural gas business throughout the world. They also have
substantial chemical interests. These activities are conducted in more than 135 countries and are subject to
changing economic, regulatory and political conditions.

Arrangements between Royal Dutch and Shell Transport provide, inter alia, that notwithstanding variations in
sharcholdings, Royal Dutch and Shell Transport shall share in the aggregate net asscts and in the aggregare
dividends and intetest received from Group companies in the proportion of 60:40. It is further arranged that
the burden of all taxes in the nature of or cotresponding to an income tax leviable in respect of such dividends
and interest shall &l in the same proportion.

The 60:40 arrangements referred to above have been supplemented by further arrangements, beginning with
Group dividends payable to the Parent Companies in respect of 1977, whereby each Parent Company is to
bring into account towards its share in the 60:40 division of dividends from Group companies tax credits and
other tax benefits which are related to the liability to tax of a Group company and which arise to the Parent
Company or which would arise to the holdets of its ordinary shares if there were to be an immediate full
onward distribution to them of Group dividends (for which purpose all shareholders are assumed to be
individuals resident and subject to tax in the country of residence of the Parent Company in question). The tax
benefit to Shell Transport for the 1994 dividend through to the 1997 interim dividend amounted

to 8% of roral Group income divisible for 60:40 purposes.

In 1997 the UK government announced changes to tax law in respect of company distributions, including the
abolirion of advance corporation tax (ACT). In view thereof, the Parent Companies agreed that the tax benefit
to Shell Transport for the 1997 final dividend and the 1998 interim dividend would be 4% of total Group
income divisible for 60:40 purposes. It was also agreed that as a result of the abolition of ACT as from April 6,
1999 there would be no tax benefit to Shell Transport for the 1998 final and subsequent dividends. This has the
effect of Shell Transport receiving the whole of its entidement in cash.

2 Accounting policies

Nature of the Financial Statements

The accounts of the Parent Companies are not included in the Financial Statements, the objective of which is to
demonstrate the financial position, results of operations and cash fows of a group of undertakings in which
each Parent Company has an interest in common whilst maintaining its separate identity. The Financial
Statements reflect an aggregation in US dollars of the accounts of companies in which Royal Dutch and Shell
Transport together, cither ditectly or indirectly, have control cither through a majoriry of the voting rights or the
right to exercise a controlling influence. Investments in companics over which Group companies have significant
influence but not control are classified as associared companies and arc accounted for on the equity basis,
Certain joint ventures are taken up in the Financial Sratements in propottion to the relevant Group interest.

The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, They have been prepared in
all material respects in accordance with generally accepred accounting principles in the Netherlands and the
United States. Group accounting policies are also substantially consistent with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United Kingdom, with the notable exception of the provision for deferred taxation.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepred accounting principles requires
management to make estimares and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the Financial Starements
and notes therero. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Equilon and Motiva

From January 1, 1998 the western and midwestern US refining and marketing businesses and domestic US
trading, transportation and lubricants businesses were combined with similar operations of Texaco Inc. through
the formation of Equilon Enterprises LLC (Equilon). The Group has a 56% interest but does not exercise
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control and therefore accounts for its investment in Equilon on the equity basis. Similarly, from July 1, 1998
the eastern and Gulf Coast US refining and marketing businesses were combined with similar operations of
Texaco Inc. and Saudi Arabian Qil Company, induding their respective interests in Star Entetprise, through the
formation of Motiva Enterprises LLC (Motiva). The Group has 2 35% interest and accounts for its investment
in Motivz on the equity basis. These changes have had 2 material effect from 1998 on the net procecds and
operating profit of Group companies and on the share of operating profit of associated companices, compared
with the previous year. ' .

Changes in accounting policy in 1998

With effect from 1998 the Group Financial Statemencs are published in dollars instcad of sterling. Comparative
daw previously rcported in sterling Have been translared inro dollars using the exchange rate prevailing in the
relevant period.

The Group implemented new United States accounting standards which require. disclosures relating to other
comprehensive income, the aligning of published results with intcrnal segment reporting, the expensing of start-
up costs and the aapitalisation of certain software costs, .

The trearment of Parent Companies’ shares held by Group companies was changed; such shares are no longer
induded in the Group's net assets but reflected as a deduction from equity. Prior years have not been restated,
due to the immateriality of the amount involved.

Reflecting their non-current nature, deferred charges and prepayments due after one year and other non-current
assets, previously included in accounts receivable, are now prescnted separately as “Other long-term assers”™.

Currency translation

Assets and liabilities of non-dollar Group companies are translated to dollars at year-end rates of exchange,
whilst their statements of income and cash flows are translated at quarterly average rates, Translation differences
arising on aggregation are taken directly to 2 currency translation diffetences account, which forms part of
Parent Companies’ interest in Group net assets. Upon disinvestment or liquidation of a non-dollar Group
company, cumulative currency mranslation differences relared to that company are taken to income.

The dollar equivalents of exchange gains arid losses arising as a result of foreign currency transactions (including
those in respect of inter-company balances unless related to transactions of a long-term investment nature) are
induded in Group net income.

Securities

Securities of a trading nature are carried at fair value with unrealised holding gains and losses being included in
net income. Securities intended to be held to maturity are carried ar cost, unless permanently impaired in which
case they are carried at fair value, All other securities are classified as available for sale and are carried at fair
value, with unrealised holding gains and losses being taken directly to Parent Companies’ interest in Group net
assets. Upon sale or marurity, the net gains and losses are included in net income.

Short-termn securities with a marurity from acquisition of three months or less and that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash are classified as cash equivalents. Securities forming part of a portfolio which is
roquired to be held long-term are classified under fixed assets — investment.

Parent Companics’ shares held by Group companics are not included in the Group's net assets but reflected as a
deduction from equiry.

Cash flows resulting from movements in sccurities of a trading nature are reported under cash flow provided by
operating activities while cash flows resulting from movements in other securities arc reported under cash flow
used in investing activities.

Financial instruments
The 2ccounting method used for derivative financial instruments is determined by whether or nat the
instrument is designated as a hedge of an existing exposure or a firm commitment and, if so, by the accounting
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method used for the item being hedged. Hedges of cxisting exposures are accounted for in the same way as the
item being hedged. Forward exchange conrracts and currency swaps used to hedge exchange rate exposure arc
valued ar market, with resulting gains and losses taken to income when the grins and losses on the underlying
hedged wansactions are recognised. Gains or losses on hedges of fim commitments are deferred and recognised
when any gains or losses on the hedged transactions are recognised. Derivative financial instrumens that are not
designaced as hedges are valued at market, and gains and losscs are taken to income.

The effect of derivative financial instruments is reflected in the Financial Statements as follows:

Seatement of Income: Premiums or discounts on derivative inscruments that are designated as hedges arc
reflecred as adjustments to interest income or expense. Interest differentials on interest rate detivatives used to
hedge debr or debr securities are included within interest expense and intercst income respectively. Gains or
losses on foreign currency contracts used to hedpe assets or liabilities are induded within currency exchange
gains/losscs. Gains or losses on commodity derivative contracts, other than thosc designated as hedges of firm
commitments, are included within cost of sales.

Sutement of Asscts and Liabilities: The carrying amounts of foreign exchange derivatives that hedge debt or
debt securities are included within investments — securites, short-term securiries, cash and cash equivalents,
short-term debr or long-term debt as applicable. The carrying amounts of other derivatives are included within
current asscts or liabilities.

Statement of Cash Flows: The effect of interest rate derivatives on inrepest payments and the cffect of
commodity defivative contracts are included within cash flow provided by operating activities. The effect of
forcign exchange derivatives is induded within the movement in the item being hedged.

Oil and gas trading

Oil and gas trading contracts such as fuures and forward contracts and swaps are entered into by some Group
companics, generally in order to hedge exposure to price fuctuations which arise on purchases and sales of
crude oil, narural gas and oil products. Conwacts designated as hedges are valued at market and resulting gains
and losses are taken to income when the gains and losses on the underlying hedged transactions are recognised.
The gains and losses on contracts that are not designated as hedges are taken to income in the period in which
they arise.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at cost to the Group or ner realisable value, whichever is lower. Such cost is determined for
the most part by the first-in first-out method (EIFO), but the cost of certain North American inventories is
determined on the basis of the last-in first-out method (LIFO). Cost comprises direct purchase costs, cost of
production, transportation and manufacturing expenses and taxes.

Exploration costs

Group companies follow the successful efforts method of accounting for oil and gas exploration costs.
Exploration costs are charged to income when incurred, with the exception that exploratory drilling costs are
initially included in tangible fixed assets pending determination of commercial reserves. The determination of
commercial reserves occurs within one year unless such reserves are in an area requiring major capital
expenditure before production could begin. Should the efforts be determined unsuccessful, they are then
charged to income.

Interest capitalisation

Interest is capitalised, as an increase in tangible fixed assets, on significant capital projects during construction,
Interest is also capitalised, as an increase in investments in associated companies, on funds invested by Group
companies which are used by associated companies for significant capital projects during construction,

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation

Tangible fixed asscts related o production acrivities are depreciated on a unit-of-production basis aver the
proved developed reserves of the field concerned, except in the case of assets whose uscful life is shorter than the

-
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lifctime of the field, in which case the straight-line method is applied. Rights and concessions are depleted on
the unit-of-production basis over the total proved reserves of the relevant area. Unproved propertics are
amortised as roquired by particular circumstances. Other tangible fixed assets are gencrally depreciated on a
straight-linc basis over their estimated uscful lives. Goadwill, which is included within intangible fixed assets, is
amortised aver its estimated uscful economic life, with a maximum of 40 years.

The carrying amounts of fixed assets are reviewed for possible impairment whenever events or changes in
drcumstances indicate. For this purposc, assets are grouped based on separately identifiable and largely
independent cash flows. Where impairment is indicated, the carrying amounts of asscts are written down to fair
value, usually determined as the amount of estimated discounted furure cash flows. Assers held for sale are
written down to the amount of estimated net realisable value.

In the evaluation for impairment of oil and gas properties, future cash flows are estimated using risk assessments
on field and reservoir pefformance and include oudooks on proved and unproved reserves, which are then
discounted or risk-weighted utilising the results from projections of geological, production, recovery and

economic factors.

Environmental expenditures

Liabilities for environmental remediation resulting from past operations or events are recognised in the period in
which an obligation to a third party arises and the amount can be reasonably estimated. Measurement of
liabilities is based on current legal requirements and existing technology. Recognition of any joint and several
liability is based upon Group companies’ best estimare of their final pro-rata share of the liability. Liabilities are
derermined independendy of expected insurance recoveries, Recoveries are recognised and reported as separate
events and brought into account when reasonably certain of realisarion. The carrying amount of liabilities is
regularly reviewed and adjusted for new facts or changes in law or technology.

Decommissioning and restoration costs

Estimated decommissioning and restoration costs are based on current requirements, technology and price
levels. In respect of oil and gas production activities, the cstimated cost is ptovided over the life of the proved
developed reserves on 2 unit-of-production basis. The recorded liabilities are reflected as a provision in the
Statement of Assets and Lisbiliuics. For other activities, the estimated cost is provided over the remaining life of
a facility on a straight-line basis once an obligation crystallises and the amount can be reasonably estimated.
Changes in estimates of costs are accrued on a prospective basis.

Deferred taxation '

Deferred taxation is provided using the comprehensive liability method of accounting for income taxes based on
provisions of enacted laws. Recognition is given to deferred tax asscts and liabilities for the expected future tax
consequences of events that have been recognised in the Financial Statemnents or in the tax returns. In estimating
these tax consequences consideration is given to expected furure events. The measurement of deferred tax assets
is reduced, if necessary, by a valuation allowance representing the amount of any tax benefits for which there is
uncertainty of tealisation,

Employee retirement plans

Retitement plans to which employees contsibute and many non-conuibutory plans are generally funded by
payments to independent trusts, Where, due to local conditions, a plan is not funded, a provision which is not
less than dhe present value of accumulated pension benefics, based on presenc salary levels, is included in the
Financial Statements. Valuations of both funded and unfunded plans arc carried out by independent actuarics.

Pension cost primarily represents the increase in actuarial present value of the obligation for pension benefits
based on employee service during the year and the interest on this obligation in respect of employee service in
previous years, net of the expected return on plan asscts.

Postretirement benefits other than pensions
Some Group companies provide certain postretirement health care and life insurance bencfits to retirees, the
entitlement to which is usually based on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age and the
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completion of a minimum service period. The expocted costs of these benefits are accrued over the periods
employces render service to the Group. Thesc plans are not funded. A provision is included in the Financial
Statements which is sufficient to cover the present value of the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation
based on current assumprions. Valuations of these obligations are carried out by independent actuaries.

Sales :

Sales proceeds are determined by reference to the sales price of goods delivered and services rendered during the
period. Sales berween Group companies are based on prices generally equivalent to commercially available
prices.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses are those which do not relate dirccrly ro the activities of a single business segment and
include expenscs incurred in the management and co-ordination of muld-segment enterpriscs.

Research and development
Rescarch and development expenditure is charged to income as incurred, with the exception of that on
buildings and major items of equipment which have alternative use. .

Reclassifications

Certain prior-year amounts have been reclassified to conform with current-year presentation.

3 Division of Group net income between the Parent Companies
The division of Group net income, in accordance with Note 1, is as follows:

1999 $ millian

‘Total Royal Duich Shell Tronsport
(60%) {40%)

Group net income 8,584 5,151 3,433

less et disuributons o

Parent Companies 5,631 3,379 2,252

Undistributed net income 2,953 1,772 1,181

1998 $ million
Total Royol Duich Shell Tronsport

Group net income . 350

Disuributions from retained camings 5,362

Net distributions to Parent Companies 5,712 3,485 2,227

Tax bencfit referable 1o net distributions

accruing to Shell Transport 97 - 97

Divisible for 60:40 purposes 5,809 60%) 3,485 0% 2,324

Discributions from rerained

camings 5,362 0% 3,217 (do%) 2,145

1997 $ million
Tatal Royal Dutch Shell Transport

Group net income 7,753

less undismibured net income 1,900

Net distributions to Parent Companies 5,853 3,723 2,130

‘Tax benefix referable to net distributions

acerying 1o Shell Transport 352 - 352

Divisible for 60:40 purposes 6,205 16o%) 3,723  4o0%} 2,482

Undisaibuted net income 1,900 (60% 1,140 4o% 760

—_— ™
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4 Parent Companies’ interest in Group net assets

$ million

1999 1998 1997
Invested by Parent Companies 741 741 741
Profits capitalised by Group companies 3,241 3,241 3,255
Retained earnings of Group companies 54,991 52,038 57,386
Parent Companies’ shares held :
by Group companies (Nowe 25) (1,111) (700)
Cumulative currency manslation
differences (1,930) (487) (969)
Untealised gains/(losses) on securities . 367 162 (7)
Minimum pension libility adjusements (128) (33) (20)
Balance ar December 31 56,171 54,962 60,386

Earnings retained by the subsidiary and associated companics of the Group Holding Companies (namcly Shell
Perroleum N.V. and The Shell Petroleum Company Limited) and Shell Petroleum Inc. amounted to $21,812

million ar December 31, 1999 (1998: $22,632 million; 1997: $29,408 million). Provision has not been made
for taxes on possible future distribution of these undistributed catnings as these earnings have been, or will be,
substantially rcinvested by the companies concerned. It is nor, therefore, meaningful to provide for these taxes
nor is it practicable 1o cstimate their full amount or the withholding tax element.

5 Other comprehensive income
1999 $ million
Credit/(Charge]
Pre-fax © Tox Aber tax
Currency vanslation differences (1,485) 23 (1,462)
Reclassificarions : 19 - 19
G ya lad 1 d.lm L8
net of reclassificarions (1,466) 23 (1,443)
Uneealised gains/{lasses) on seaurities 266 (31) 235
Redlassifications ) (31) 1 (30)
Unrealised gains/(losses) on secusities
net of reclassifications 235 (30) 205
Minimumn pension liability adjustments (139) 4 (95)
Other comprehensive income (1,370) 37 (1,333)
1998 $ miflion
Credit/{Charge)
Pre-tax Tax After tax
Currency manslation differences 477 (16) 461
Reclassificaions 21 - 21
Curmency mranslation differences
net of reclassificadions 498 (16) 482
Unrealised gains/(losses) on securities 215 (29) 186
Redassifications (22) 5 (17)
Unrealised gains/(losses) on securides
net of reclassificarions 193 (24) 169
Minimum pension liabilicy adjustments (23) 10 (13)
Other comprehensive income . 668 (30) 638
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6 Associated companies

(a) Income

Assodiated companies engage in similar businesses to Group companies and play an imporrant part in the
overall operating activities of the Group. Consequently, the Group share of operating profits arising from
associated companies is seen as a contribution to the total Group operating profit and is shown as such in the
Seatement of Income. The Group share of interest income, interest expense, currency exchange gains/losses and
taxation of associated companics has been included within those items in the Statement of Income.

A summarised Statement of Income with respect to the Group share of net income from associared companics,
together with a segment analysis, is set out below:

$ million
. 1999 1998 1997
Net proceeds 40,970 33,464 23,094
Cost of sales 33,646 30,944 19,238
Gross profit 7,324 2,520 3.856
Orher operating expenses 5,003 3,276 1,726
Operating profit/(loss) 2,321 (756) 2,130
Interest and other incomc 76 75 49
Interest expense 339 ‘313 228
Currency exchange pain\s/(losses) 4 39 )]
Income before taxation 2,062 (955) 1,944
Taxation 966 489 713
Net income 1,096 (1,444) 1,231

Cost of sales in 1998 includes $2,243 million relating to the impairment of certain fixed assets, ptimarily in the
Exploration and Production segment, mainly resulting from the downward revision in expectation of long-term
sustained oil prices. The related rax effects are not included in taxation above, but are reflected in the results of
Group companies holding such invesaments.

Income by segment $ million
1999 1998 1997

Exploration and Praduction 459 (2,054) 480
Downstreamn Gas and Power 213 289 255
Qil Products 319 340 328
Chemicals 117 10 162
Other (12) (29) 6
1,096 (1,444) 1,231

{b} Investments

$ million

1999 1998

Shares Loany Total Toral

At January 1 14,984 1,702 16,686 13,034

New investments 630 394 1,024 1,282
Disposals, net assct oransfers to )

associates and other movements {336) (56) (392) 4,744

Net income 1,096 - 1,096 (1,444)

Dividends (1,519) - (1,519) (1,137)

Currency wanslation differences  (132) (77) _(209) 207

At December 31 14,723 1,963 16,686 16,686
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In 1998 assets and liabilities transferred to Equilon and Motiva of approximatcly $8.4 billion and $2.8 billion,
respectively, were removed from the Group's Statement of Assets and Liabilitics and the net amount of $5.6
billion was recorded as equity investments in Equilon and Motiva.

A summarised Statement of Assets and Liabilities with respect to the Group share of investments in associated
companies is set out below: v

$ million

1999 1998

Fixed assets 22,300 23,331
Current assets 8,590 7,403
Toral assets 30,890 30,734
Current liabilides 8,690 8,343
Long-uerm liabilideés 5,514 5,705
Net assers 16,686 16,686

An analysis by segment is shown in Note 23.

(c) Transactions betwéen Group companies and associated companies
Transactions berween Group and associated corapanies mainly comprise sales and purchases of goods and
services in the ordinary course of business and in toral amounted to:

$ million

1999 1998 1997

Charges ro associared companies 12,476 11,620 12,052
Charges from associated companies 4,016 4,046 4,501

Balanees ourstanding at December 31 in respect of the above transactions are shown in Notes 13 and 17.

7 interest and other income

$ million
e 1998 1997

Group companices
Interest income 410 487 805
Other income 55 67 58
465 554 863
Associated companies 76 75 49
541 629 212

Other income of Group companies in 1999 includes net unrcalised holding gains on trading securities of
$1 million (1998: $1 million gains; 1997: $6 million losses).

8 interest expense
$ million
1999 1998 1997
Interest incurred 1,001 1,113 1,029
less interest capiraliscd 87 93 87
Interest expense of Group companies 914 1,020 942
Interest cxpense of associated companies 339 313 228
1,253 1,333 1,170
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